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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Homelessness and rough sleeping has risen significantly over the past nine years. At St Mungo's we know we
need to do all we can to address this stark fact.

During 2018-19 St Mungo's took on projects that made significant steps towards our five year ambition of
reversing the rise in rough sleeping and to at least halve the number of people who sleep rough in the areas
where we work.

As part of its Rough Sleeping Initiative, the Government initially decided to invest £30 million in this financial
year and a further £45 million during 2019-20 to provide funding to local authorities to deliver services to reduce
rough sleeping in their areas. We have strong partnerships with many of the local authorities in receipt of this
funding and it has enabled us to expand existing services, pilot new ones and recruit specialists in order to reach
more people in need of support. These projects have helped us work alongside a number of local authorities to
address the immediate shelter needs of people on the streets, and their longer term move on. The value of
these bids is in excess of £4.5 million with more than £3 million allocated to financial year 2018-19.
Our current business priorities are to grow, strengthen and evidence. Why? Grow because there are
demonstrably more people needing more help from the quality services we can offer. Strengthen because our
experience means we have the knowledge and skills to offer safer, stronger, and better run services to people
in need. And evidence, because through listening to clients and staff, we can be the voices for change to our
commissioners, partners and the wider public to help deliver on our vision that everyone has a place to call
home and can fulfil their hopes and ambitions.
As voices for change we influence people nationally and locally. Our main campaign this year, Home for Good,
involved over 21,300 people signing an open letter to the Government calling for an end to rough sleeping for
good. This, on the back of more joint sector campaigning on the Homelessness Reduction Act, and lobbying for
homelessness to be more fully recognized in the NHS Long Term Plan, enables us to express the concerns of
our clients with decision makers at the highest level.
This year we strengthened many of our internal systems and processes that help us support clients. This
resulted on 24 April 2019 in a very welcome upgrade by the Regulator for Social Housing back to being a G1,
housing association, the top rating for governance. The Regulator recognised that compliance at all levels has
been improved through delivery of an organisational culture action plan, evidenced by improved systems,
accountability and monitoring. The quality of St Mungo's data and its regulatory returns has met the standard
expected by trustees.

Evidencing our impact links in closely with strengthening systems and channels through which we can better
record the difference we are making, individually for our clients and on a wider scale for commissioners and
within society. In January 2019 St Mungo's ran its client feedback survey. A total of 963 clients took part, 93%
of whom said they were satisfied with the support from St Mungo's and 95% who said staff are caring,
compassionate and respectful.

We began the 2018-19 financial year in a stronger financial position than we were two years previously, and
this year delivered a turnover of £95 million and cash and reserves are above the minimum requirement. This
has been achieved partly through considered use of our resources and partly through the generous donations
of our supporters, who continue to underpin our innovative services, beyond those we are contracted to deliver.
In addition, around 45% of our job vacancies are filled by internal candidates each year. As a people based
organisation, this indicates a positive level of staff satisfaction and retention, and indeed less spending needed
on recruitment.

We have an ambitious vision and delivering against that, in the current political and economic climate, is
challenging but we're resolute to continue. While the Regulator for Social Housing acknowledged our business
plan is fully funded and based on reasonable assumptions, they also noted that the nature of our work is low
margin which reduces our ability to absorb adverse shocks. It is because of this that we maintain a robust focus
on our reserves and liquidity, including a significant level of cash reserves and nominal debt.

As highlighted in last year's statement, our focus in the coming years will be on developing more housing and
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interconnecting resources, assets, and support as we seek to offer more opportunities for people to have a
place to call home and be able to fulfil their hopes and ambitions. However, in light of the uncertainty of how
Brexit will impact the Group, the Board has agreed to take a cautious approach to capital investment over the

next year.

2019 is St Mungo's 50th anniversary year. We are marking this through a project called 50 Lives which
recognises some of the extraordinary clients, staff, volunteers and supporters who have played a part in our
history and, indeed, will be part of our present and our future. During 2019-20 we also plan to create a new
Recovery College base in Stratford, East London, within a building which will also house the majority of central
support services, enabling even more direct daily connection between clients and central support staff and better
understanding of the views of our clients, and the issues they are experiencing.

May I conclude by thanking St Mungo'sjust under 1,500 staff, 1,200 volunteers and thousands of supporters.
With their commitment and dedication we continue to help more people recover from homelessness and fulfil
their hopes and ambitions.

Robert Napier
Chair

23 July 2019
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STRATEGIC REPORT

The Trustees present the annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.
The financial position and results for the year are set out on pages 34 - 64 of these statements.
THE CONTEXT IN WHICH WE OPERATE

On 31 January 2019 the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government published its figures showing

that 4,677 people slept on the streets in England on a snapshot night in autumn 2018, a reduction of 74 people

(2%) from the autumn 2017 total of 4,751. Any reduction is to be welcomed; however, this was up 2,909 people

or 165% from the 2010 total of 1,768 people.

London accounted for 27% of the total number of people sleeping rough in England (up from 24% of the England
total in 2017). The number of people sleeping rough increased by 146 or 13% in London,and decreased by 220
or 6% in the rest of England, since 2017.

Overall, 64% of people sleeping rough were UK nationals (2017: 71%); 22% were EU nationals from outside
the UK (2017: 16%); 3% were non-EU nationals (2017: 4%); 14% of the people recorded sleeping rough were
women (2017:14%); and 6% were aged 25 years or under (2017: 8%).

Our work encompasses providing routes out of rough sleeping, providing a safe place to stay and supporting
our clients to enjoy good health, to progress to becoming economically active and feeling confident and hopeful
about their futures.

As of 31 March 2019, we provided 133 client facing services in the South and South West of England, based
across 353 projects. We worked with more than 29,700 clients during the year.
On any one night during 2018-19 St Mungo Community Housing Association (St Mungo's) provided housing
and support to more than 2,850 people. These may be people referred into hostels from sleeping rough; or
people referred into temporary accommodation to prevent them sleeping rough or becoming homeless.
We work predominantly with single adults. We are reviewing our approach to supporting couples. We support
families specifically through our Real Lettings service. We have two care homes in London, for people who
have care needs who have experienced homelessness, both CQC 'Good' rated. We have one service
specifically for young people in West Oxfordshire.

During 2018-19 our 17 outreach teams in, Bournemouth & Poole, Brighton, Bristol, London, Oxford, Reading,
and South Essex worked with thousands of people, some briefly, some on an ongoing basis.
Being in prison can cause the loss of a home, job and relationship with family and friends. Last year we
worked with more than 9,946 (2018: 9,335) prisoners and ex-offenders, helping them to make real and
positive change in their lives. Our Offender Services Team has been providing support in prisons for around
two decades. We currently work in 14 prisons in London and one in hlertfordshire. This includes three services
for young offenders.

We provide services that very few other organisations are able to match, in respect of quality, range and reach.
A roof over someone's head is fundamental but we go further: the combination of housing, our support services
and our recovery activities mean we can offer our clients a mix truly transformational services to end
homelessness.

Many of St Mungo's clients have complex and multiple needs, including severe and enduring difficulties with
physical and mental health and substance use. Through our outreach work and hostels, we have become
experts at working with, and supportively housing, people with very complex problems - for example, people
with severe mental health problems, a lifelong alcohol addiction, very challenging behaviour, or a combination
of these and other issues.
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We work with a wide range of clients but at the heart of all of our services is our commitment to empowering the
individual, to support people in their recovery journey and to preventing homelessness in the future.
Our recovery service ethos is a commitment to all our clients that we will;
Listen to, understand and value their unique individual experience
• Ensure they have a safe place to live

Focus on their strengths, explore their real options and take practical steps towards achieving their
goals

Enable them to build and enjoy positive, supportive relationships
Create opportunities that empower them to learn, thrive and contribute to the community.

Across St Mungo's we build relationships that lead to an increased understanding about homelessness and
empathy for the people who experience it. The diverse voices of our clients and the evidence we gain from
providing services gives us knowledge about what works and we use this perspective to advocate for policy
change.

Our vision is that everyone should have a place to call home and be able to fulfil their hopes and
ambitions.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

For five decades St Mungo's has been committed to addressing homelessness and helping people recover their
lives. We are both a housing association and a homelessness charity. Enabling people to have access to safe
and effective accommodation and support are at the heart of our vision, mission and values.

St Mungo's owns, leases or manages 3,116 bedspaces,accommodating clients in a range of properties from
modern hostels to supported housing and care homes. St Mungo's are the freeholder for 54 residential
properties, with long leases on 11 properties. People may live with us for a few days, or a few years. What is
crucial is that the accommodation they move into provides the right environment for them in their time of need
and supports them to move on and away from homelessness.

During 2018-19 we managed 133services. The majority of the services were commissioned by local authorities.
Much of the income for these support and care activities comes from contracts awarded by central or local
Government, which we compete for. Some, but not all, of these support services are linked to residential projects
such as our hostels and supported housing. However, within our support services, particularly in our skills,
employment and health activities there are programmes which are wholly or in part funded by donations and
charitable grants.

Our current business priorities are to grow our services and housing to transform the lives of more people, to
further strengthen our organisational culture and infrastructure and to evidence more our impact and influence
change. Demonstrating quality, impact and cost effectiveness is a fundamental aim for us and also our
commissioners, funders and supporters.

We also influence locally and nationally to end homelessness and for support for people's recovery from
homelessness. For example, during 2018-19 we began campaigning for the Government to build more social
homes and make them available to people who have slept rough; improve private renting; and guarantee longterm funding for homelessness services.
KEY MISSION AND PUBLIC BENEFIT

Three years ago, we launched our organisational strategy, "Ending Homelessness, Rebuilding Lives". This
outlined our ambition which is, by 2021, to reverse the increase in rough sleeping in England. In the areas where
we work, we aim to halve the number of people sleeping rough by 2021.

We recognise, however, that supporting people off the streets is only part of the challenge. We need to empower
people to then sustain their lives away from the streets through a recovery journey that encompasses building
good relationships, improving the person's health and enabling them to look for work.
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We also need to look after our housing assets and ensure we have enough income left over each year to
maintain our buildings in good condition for the future.

To support the strategy we set five aims, which we called our 5 'I's. Together they are a framework to guide and
explain our activities as we seek to achieve our ambition.
Between 2016 and 2021 we aim to:

1. Improve our sen/ices, our housing (and the systems they rely on) so they are safer and more effective in
changing the lives of our clients

2. Interconnect to resources, assets and support in the areas where we work
3. Innovate and test new evidence-based services and tackle rough sleeping
4. Influence national and local government to implement new rough sleeping strategies
5. Involve our clients in all aspects of our work.

St Mungo's is a registered charity. In setting out our aims and planning our activities we have given careful
consideration to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit.
The Trustees ensure that the activities of the charity are consistent with its charitable objects and aims. In
agreeing our annual plans, the Trustees take into account public benefit as set out in the Charity Commission's
general guidance on public benefit in relation to the prevention and relief of poverty, the advancement of
education and health and the relief of those in need. The Trustees believe there is clear public benefit derived
from the activities of the charity.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

Improve our services, our housing (and the systems they rely on) so they are safer and more effective
in changing the lives of our clients.

We are committed to delivering safe and effective housing and services that transform lives. Maintaining safe
and secure properties is core to our recovery service ethos, which says that "as a client of St Mungo's, we will
work with you to ensure you have a safe place to live".
During 2018-19 around half of our additional contracted income was secured outside of conventional
commissioning processes (2017-18: 30%) and over half of the current business development activities involve
developing contracted services through negotiations instead of competitive tender process.

The publication of the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) national Rough
Sleeping Strategy is the driver for this change as local authorities are channelling MhlCLG funding through
contract variations instead of brand new contracts.

During summer 2018, this led to 21 partnership bids being co-developed with local authorities to strengthen our
existing service provision. The value of these bids is in excess of £4.5 million with more than £3 million allocated
to financial year 2018-19.

We are mindful that the short term funding brought by the MHCLG has to be mitigated by securing long term
contracts to stabilise our portfolio as much as possible. We achieved this through wining two major
accommodation based contracts in Sutton and Hounslow which started on 1 April 2019. The combined value of
these bids is in excess of £7 million over their fixed term and will mean rental income in excess of £8 million.

In parallel, we are now more systematically assessing each contracted services performance and alignment
with our growth strategy at a point of re-tender.

Over the course of 2018-19 we have focused on some major building and housing management projects,
alongside further refurbishment of our properties. Last year we spent £1.7 million as part of our works to existing
properties.

In June 2018 we opened the new North No Second Night Out (NSNO) Hub at Mare Street, Hackney, developed
through generous funding from donors. This meant the service could be transferred from operating in a former
church building to a purpose designed, comfortable environment offering up to 25 people a night somewhere to
sleep and seek support, whilst the NSNO team helps find them more permanent accommodation. The new
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facility, on the lower ground floor of one of our existing hostels, has showering and laundry facilities as well as
computer points, a kitchenette, office space and private interview rooms for staff to talk with clients about move
on options. The Mare Street NSNO Hub is phase one. The second Hub is in progress at our existing site in
Lewisham and due to open in 2019.

This South hub will sit alongside a Staging Post service that offers 26 slightly longer term bed space temporary
accommodation for people newly sleeping rough, and a new purpose built 28 bed hostel to replace the existing
Garden House at Spring Gardens in Lewisham. The planned expenditure is included in our capital commitments.
The Mayor of London committed £5 million towards this project.

In Bristol we successfully acquired a five bed property. In London we took the decision to put a nine bed property
on the market, after considering best use of assets in order to meet our goal of helping more people with
accommodation options. These actions were following our review to ensure we are maximizing use and driving
efficiencies. In terms of maintaining properties, by 2020, St Mungo's will invest over £7.4 million improving
buildings that accommodate residents.

During 2018-19, as part of strengthening our systems, we began a review of our housing management
processes and systems. This recommended both IT (Customer Relationship Management system) and culture
changes to be made in terms of how we improve our management around properties, repairs, voids, rent
payments, and continue to support tenants in a personalised, customer focused way as we work with more
people in a wider range of geographical locations with a mix of support needs.

Safety remains fundamental. We have built on our Solid Foundations 'non negotiables' on client safety, property
health and safety, as well as DBS checks, staff management and training and budget management.
Interconnect to resources, assets and support in the areas where we work

Over the next three years we will continue to ensure that our clients can access the specialist services they
need for their recovery. We are building and strengthening partnerships with local organisations and other

charities, and drawing on local support for our work.

For example, in Bristol, we opened the first ever 24 hour shelter in November 2018 to reduce the numbers of
people rough sleeping over the winter. The St Anne's Shelter, run by St Mungo's alongside charity partners
Caring in Bristol, The Julian Trust and Crisis Centre Ministries, hadacapacity of 30 people a night for emergency
provision for people rough sleeping or at risk of rough sleeping during the life-threatening cold weather. The
shelter also offered wider activities and community space and welcomed 59 people off the streets in total, linking
them in with move on help when the shelter closed in spring 2019. Housing Minister James Brokenshire MP
visited the shelter to meet clients and staff there as Government funding supported its operation.
Our Women's Strategy Manager began developing, and strengthening, links with women's services and
reviewing how we support people who have experienced domestic abuse, culminating in the publication of a
Women's Strategy. We have worked on some significant new women only services this year, such as the Green
Room in Westminster, which provides women only emergency shelter for up to a dozen women a night,
alongside offers of longer term support.

St Mungo's has continued its work to provide quality and affordable privately rented accommodation to
vulnerably housed people, through Real Lettings. As of March 2019, more than 709 householders across the
south are living in homes managed by Real Lettings, proving a stable environment for individuals and families
at risk of homelessness before moving into more permanent accommodation.

This year our staff worked closely with health professionals including nurses and specialist agencies. In April
2018 StMungo's and London South Bank University won Partnership of the Year at the Student Nursing Times
Award. These awards, across 19 categories, are for the student nurses, universities and organisations from
across the student nursing community dedicated to celebrating exceptional achievement.
On World hlomelessness Day, 10 October, St Mungo's also launched a new practical partnership to help
businesses become hlomelessWise, with the first member joining up being Nationwide Building Society.
HomelessWise is a way in which businesses can be more informed and aware of how to help people sleeping
rough and signpost them to local services. Eight Nationwide branches trialled the development of
HomelessWise with St Mungo's, including eLearning and access to an online portal about local services. As the
first member and leading sponsor, the Society is set to roll out HomelessWise across its network of UK branches.
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Innovate and test new evidence-based services and tackle rough sleeping
This year has seen new opportunities to innovate and test services through additional monies awarded to local
authorities by the MhlCLG to alleviate homelessness, specifically rough sleeping.
In London, we initiated a Floating Hubs project which meant new joint working with eight different councils
(Islington, Hammersmith & Fulham, Haringey, Hackney, RB Kensington & Chelsea, Newham, Lambeth,
Westminster) as well as community and drug, alcohol and mental health organisations to help bring inside 143
people who had been rough sleeping. Over six months between October 2018 and March 2019 120 people had
positive moves on into accommodation or reconnections with family or local areas. The project, which was
funded through the Greater London Authority (GLA) was one of only eight shortlisted in the UK Housing Awards
2019 in the category 'Homelessness project of the year (under 4,000 homes)'.
In three areas we also began work on setting up Somewhere Safe to Stay provision, supporting people who
have no alternative but to sleep rough. This includes people leaving prison, people who have been evicted or
those people who without an intervention are likely to end up sleeping rough. The services work alongside
council Housing Option services, assisting in fulfilling the duties of the Homelessness Reduction Act. Funded
by local authorities from money from the MHCLG, we will evaluate the impact of these services during 2019-20.
St Mungo's is one of the largest providers of Housing First services in England, currently supporting more than
120 clients in nine different locations. Our services continue to have a positive impact in Bournemouth, Brighton,
Camden, Ealing, Essex, hlaringey, Hammersmith and Fulham, Reading and Westminster. OneofourCamden
residents won an award for best overall male achievement in the Camden Adult Pathway Awards 2019 for the
way he has rebuilt his life, having become a Housing First resident after many years in a cycle of homelessness,
prison and tackling substance and mental health issues.

In May 2018 we launched the new Keeping in Touch service which provides a support phone line service for
those moving on from our services to prevent a return to homelessness, funded through fundraised income.
People are referred to KIT as they move on from our hostels and accommodation projects and they can gain
advice and signposting around four main areas: housing and money management, health and wellbeing,
community engagement, education, training and employment. KIT had a first year target of contacting 225
people but in fact managed to speak to nearly 297. Of these, 81% of clients reported increased confidence in
paying their bills and managing their money, 85% had registered with a GP and were accessing health services
they needed, 87% reported feeling connected with their community, and 71% felt able to move into some kind
of education, training or employment. For its second year KIT has a target of contacting and advising at least
450 people who have moved on from St Mungo's services.

In order to achieve our ambition to reverse the rise in rough sleeping we aim to pilot employment and skills
projects. Our Putting Down Roots (PDR) project helps people gain gardening experience in communities and
work towards horticultural qualifications. A linked project, Putting Down Roots for Young People, is also
engaging 16-24 year olds in Oxfordshire and London with the aim of preventing homelessness and enabling
people to gain skills which will boost their confidence and ability to sustain a home.
Influence national and local government to implement new rough sleeping strategies
One of our priorities during 2018-19 was to evidence further our impact and influence change, as our
organisational strategy recognises the importance of influencing national and local government in order to
achieve our ambition.

It's been a critical year. In total, we organised a record number of meetings, visits and events with MPs and
Ministers. A total of 13 ministers and shadow ministers visited our services or met with staff and a wide range
of clients during the year. From clients, and staff, they heard of experiences related to homelessness, rough
sleeping, access to health services, problems with welfare and benefit systems, issues around the private rented
sector, vagrancy and eviction.
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During 2018-19, our policy, public affairs, campaigning and research colleagues have helped shape policy and

legislation which has the biggest impact on our clients, for example:

Our Save Hostels, Rebuild Lives campaign to reverse the Government's planned changes to funding
for short-term supported housing was successful in that in August 2018 the Government dropped the
plans.

We worked hard to shape the Government's Rough Sleeping Strategy, developed recommendations
and our Chief Executive, Howard Sinclair, sat on a panel advising ministers on the content. When the
strategy was published in summer 2018, we were pleased to see many of our recommendations
included.

St Mungo's was part of a coalition which won an award in the 2018 Shelia McKechnie Foundation
National Campaigner Awards for the joint Back the Bill campaign to secure significant improvements to
homelessness legislation with the new Homelessness Reduction Act.

We launched our peer research report 'On my own two feet' in Parliament in summer 2018, attended
by clients who had worked as peer researchers, to explore the reasons why people return to rough
sleeping.

In October 2018 we began our #hlomeForGood campaign which calls on the Government to build more social
homes and make them available to people who have slept rough; improve private renting; and guarantee longterm funding for homelessness services. In February 2019, Kevin, a former client, handed in an open letter to
James Brokenshire, Secretary of State for Housing, with over 21,300 signatures backing the #HomeforGood
campaign.

During the year we have also provided briefings to MPs on repealing the outdated Vagrancy Act, on how
homelessness needs to be considered as part of the NHS Long Term Plan, women's experience of
homelessness and the numbers of people who die while sleeping rough. We continue to work on these themes
and on fixing the 'hole' in government funding for homelessness services in comparison with around a decade
ago.

For these campaigns, and for our emergency cold weather and rough sleeping provision, we have continued to
increase our media and social media profile which in turn enables us to reach wider audiences and also
encourage them to become involved in our influencing work.
Involve our clients in all aspects of our work

We see client involvement as an absolutely vital element in empowering our clients and improving the services
we offer. Last year numerous clients were involved, for example by sitting on recruitment panels, providing
feedback on key organisational policies and strategies, developing and facilitating training courses, representing
St Mungo's externally in terms of our policy and influencing work as well as developing and attending client
involvement activities in their own services.

This year our clients have played a key part in many service improvement, health, research and campaign
initiatives, for example:

We held a cross consultation involving clients on an overarching Recovery Approach which has now
been adopted

We worked with clients on guidance for ways to help people in our services stop or reduce smoking
A team of 12 peer researchers, working with the Research team, published the report 'On my own two
feet' which they presented in Parliament, to around 250 St Mungo's managers and at numerous smaller
meetings

After a restructuring of roles last year, our aim during 2018-19 was to focus on embedding the new regional
structure, such as developing further branches of our Outside In client representative group, monitoring a
pathway approach for clients to go from being members of Outside In to becoming volunteers to more structured
opportunities.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The financial performance of St Mungo's shows another good year with the Group achieving a surplus of £3.3
million (2018: £4.1 million surplus). The key areas of improvement are the increase in net fundraising income
of £2.5 million and growth in support service contract income generating £3.1 million (£0.4 million contribution)
and the renegotiation of underperforming supporting people contracts delivering a £0.6 million contribution.
These have been partially offset by some of our services coming to the end of their life cycle (£1.5 million),
increase in repairs costs (£0.3 million) and a £0.4 million increase in property compliance costs.

Fundraised income is £12.9 million (2018: £10.5 million) which is higher than the target for the year and includes
the receipt of legacy income. The exceptional unrestricted income that has not been allocated during the year
totals £2.9 million and has been set aside in a designated reserve to fund future services and transformation
projects.

Annual service contract income across supporting people and support services is £34.5 million (2018: £33.9
million). Successful bids and proposals for new and existing services contracts during 2018-19 had a total
revenue value of £24.0 million (for the fixed term of the contracts). Of this revenue, new business represented
£18.5 million, retention of existing support service contracts represented £5.5 million. These figures do not
include the revenue generated by rents and service charges linked to these contracts which represented £16
million (£8.7 million additional income and £7.2 million retained income). During 2018-19 we stopped running a
number of services representing a loss of £1.5 million. These services came to the natural end of their life cycle
and one service in Bristol accounts for £1.36 million out of £1.5 million. In addition, we decided to withdraw from

the re-tender of our substance use service in Haringey as the new model departed too much from our core
service offer. The loss of income does not impact 2018-19 and will be counterbalanced in 2019-20 by the
additional income secured through two new major accommodation based contracts due to start on 1st April

2019.

We have had good performance on rent collection in 2018-19 but further improvement is required on void and
bad debts. As in previous years the average costs per unit for social housing is higher than other registered
landlords due to our client groups (please refer to VFM section for further details).

Central overheads are 14% (2018: 14%) of turnover and there are plans to reduce this through efficiencies and
growth to 12%.

At 31 March 2019 St Mungo's had reserves of £16.3 million (2018: £17.7 million) and cash and bank balances
totalling £24.9 million (2018: £23 million). The reduction in reserves is largely due to the increase in the SHPS
Defined Benefit pension scheme liability (refer to note 25) offset by the surpluses for the year. Growth objectives
have been agreed for 2019-20 going forward that will utilise the balance sheet resources to support further client
services and increase the housing supply.

VALUE

FOR

MONEY

We deliver our objectives as a housing association and as a homelessness charity by operating a business
model that combines the landlord function, with the delivery of commissioned service contracts and fundraising
income to add value to our clients' services. Our legacy and fund raised income enable initiatives to fund new
services or the delivery of additional services to our clients that would otherwise not be provided. Through
optimising our VFM we reach more people who need our help and ensure they receive safe and effective
services which enable them to rebuild their lives and hence contribute to the realisation of our vision.

This Value for Money ("VFM") section is an assessment of our performance in delivering VFM plans during
2018-19 and shows how we have managed our resources economically, efficiently and effectively in order to
deliver our vision, organisational objectives and our commitments to our clients.
During the year performance has been measured against VFM targets which incorporate metrics required by
the Regulator of Social hlousing. When compared to other Social housing providers St Mungo's continues to
have higher than average costs per unit due to the specialist nature of our clients and has little debt compared
to other housing associations. However, St Mungo's growth in non-social housing units, through the Real
Lettings service, is higher than other housing associations.
10

St Mungo Community Housing Association
Annual Report and Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019

Company Registered number 08225808
Homes England Registration LH0279
Charity number 1149085

OurVFM targets include growth in support services, optimising our property portfolio, greater client engagement
and satisfaction, improvements in our staff efficiency as well as cash efficiency savings. Overall, in 2018-19 we
have achieved £1.1 million (72%) of the VFM cash savings targets set by the Board. This included £0.4m of
savings on central support functions at a time when the association is growing, £0.6m through renegotiation of
underperforming contracts and £0.1m through improved recovery in rent debts. This is described in more detail
below.

Approach to VFM

St Mungo's has a clear framework for achieving value for money, incorporating the following:
Strategic objectives including improving the economic and social return of our assets
The Board has approved the Business Plan, Growth Strategy, Strategic Asset Management Strategy,
Fundraising Strategy, Financial Plan and Risk Appetite for the Group and oversees their implementation through
relevant Board committees and Executive team. These strategies inform our objectives and priorities for the
year and ensure we remain focused on the delivery of our overall organisational objectives.
Our resources are aligned to achieve the objectives of our strategy, which also contributes to achieving our
overall vision. Our business plan sets out the steps we will take to grow and develop so we can deliver the
ambitions of our strategy.

We know that we won't be able to deliver our overall ambition of tackling rough sleeping without offering
appropriate housing so that our clients are able to rebuild their lives. St Mungo's Strategic Asset Management
Plan aligns our business and property strategies. The objective is to ensure the optimisation of our portfolio,
protecting the assets and the clients housed within. The plan sets out how we will manage our existing stock of
approximately 3,100 bed spaces and increase to 5,000 over the next three years.
Decisions about how we use our resources to deliver objectives

When making decisions the Board consider impact on clients and achieving the business plan objectives,
alternative options, the risks involved and the financial impact including VFM considerations. All Board reports
for decision include a VFM and risk assessment. The Standing Orders outline the procurement processes and
tenders required for significant investment decisions and the delegated authority to approve business cases.
Understanding and monitoring our business model and the risks and opportunities associated with it

We run 133 services across 353 projects. Some, but not all, of the support services we operate are linked to
our owned or leased residential projects such as hostels and supported housing. It is important that the operating
surplus from the social housing and the client services are sufficient to cover the corporate overheads on an
ongoing basis in order to have a viable business.

Each business stream is modelled over a five year period in the financial plan to ensure that there is sufficient
operating surplus and fundraised income contributions to achieve planned growth. The annual budget provides
a detailed summary of the income and expenditure expected for business stream and is approved by the Board,
alongside the five year financial plan.

Every year the Board considers the impact of different business scenarios (stress testing) on the financial plan.
This year the Board has considered the impact of a Brexit No Deal on the ability to recruit and retain staff
employed from the EU, increasing supply costs and the impact on support service contracts. The Board has
also reviewed the impact of changes in the valuation of the SHPS Defined Benefit Scheme liability as a stress
test scenario.

The Board has approved a Reserves and Liquidity policy and an Investment Policy, to ensure that new
opportunities are properly evaluated and modelled in the financial plan, using cash and reserves responsibly,
whilst ensuring that sufficient balances are retained to offset any adverse risks materialising based on the stress
testing analysis. As a result a cautious approach to growth investment is being taken until there is more certainty
over Brexit.
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Consideration of potential VFM gains

Each year the Board approves an annual budget which includes targets for VFM gains. The performance against
these VFM targets is monitored by the Board and the Finance and Development Committee at least quarterly.
The Board approved target VFM gains for 2018-19 of £1.5 million and received a final outturn confirming the
achievement of 72% of this target.

The Board considers the cost and benefit of alternative commercial, organisational and delivery structures
including VFM impact. During the year the new subsidiaries to oversee the Social Impact Bonds for London,
Brighton and an Associate for Bristol have started to achieve client outcomes. These structures enabled new
sources of funds to be secured for very intensive services to help entrenched rough sleepers who would
otherwise continue to be homeless.

The activities of a subsidiary, Broadway Real Enterprises Limited, which has acted as a social enterprise, have
been reviewed and as future contracts (providing IT consultancy to other homeless charities) fall within the
charitable objects, the Board have resolved to bring this activity into the parent.
As part of the Growth Strategy approved in May 2018 the Board considered the optimal organisational and
delivery structures to deliver the Business Plan objectives. This includes consideration of establishing new
services supported by fundraising income to address unmet need in new areas and increasing the supply of
accommodation through entering arrangements with property funds or a subsidiary.
Benchmarking our performance

We recognise the importance of comparing our performance with others and our activities are benchmarked in
several different ways both internally between services and externally against other providers.
Every two years St Mungo's carries out a survey on satisfaction across our services. The most recent survey
was conducted between November 2018 and January 2019. Results, for a comparable client group, were
benchmarked against other homelessness organisations who provide social housing.

Client feedback was very positive overall and very encouraging. Attitudes towards staff were particularly
favourable and clients tend to identify the care and compassion of staff as St Mungo's biggest strength. 92% of
respondents were satisfied with the support they receive from St Mungo's (benchmark: 89% median).

Anti-social behaviour in services, maintenance and repair and move on stand out as our biggest sources of
frustration for clients. These are key areas for improvement for St Mungo's here but also for other Housing
Associations since we are not responsible for maintenance and repair in many of the properties we deliver
services from. However, 95% of repairs we are responsible for are completed to timescale. Efficiency initiatives
are already underway, and were planned ahead of the survey, to embed new service structures and introduce
new IT systems. We will review whether further work is needed to address maintenance and repair concerns by
St Mungo's or third party landlords when setting next year's work plan.
The availability of affordable housing into which our clients can move is an important issue for our clients and
one which remains a persistent challenge for us. Our research team are exploring the issue to understand better
the challenges service teams and clients experience and we are implementing a Move On Strategy. Our
campaigning activity is addressing this through the "Homes for Good" campaign.
When reviewing the results between service types and demographic groups there was a small but noticeable
gender gap: on a number of key measures, women have a less positive experience than men. The biggest of
these gender gaps are in relation to safety issues, where women's experiences are markedly less positive than
men's. This reinforces the core challenge identified by our new Women's Strategy 2019-2022, Women at St
Mungo's', which is: to create an environment of physical and psychological safety for our female clients, who
face disproportionate risk of harm from people they love and trust as well as the dangers of homelessness. As
part of the strategy we have identified and committed to a number of strategic aims to improve women's safety
in our services over the next three years, including domestic abuse training, greater provision of female only
services/spaces and support, and working with other specialist agencies.
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St Mungo's is an active member of a benchmarking group with other homelessness organisations who provide
social housing. Housing management data is benchmarked every two years. Metrics for 2018-19 are not
available at this time and will be discussed next year. The published report for 2016-17, discussed as part of
last year's value for money statement, identified the need to improve our bad debts position. Bad debts are
discussed in the Efficiency section below.
VFM targets and monitoring performance

St Mungo's performance management framework starts at Board level and is cascaded from Executive Team
throughout the Group to individual staff members. This is supported by comprehensive reporting drawn from
our client monitoring, human resources and housing management systems which show a range of key
performance indicators including health and safety, voids, sickness levels, complaints and value for money
targets alongside the delivery of contracted outcomes. Performance is reviewed quarterly and is reported to
relevant Committees and the Board.

Our Value for Money performance is measured by the Board against targets set under the key elements of:
Economy - maximising the level of resources available to deliver our objectives
Efficiency - maximising how well we use our resources

Effectiveness - maximising the outcomes we achieve with our resources.
These targets include the VFM gains approved with the annual budget and cover both landlord, services and
fundraising activities. The targets also reflect the direction of our organisational strategy and business plan so
that it is clear how achieving value for money contributes towards achieving our vision.
Value for Money performance in 2018-19
Economy - growing the resources available to us
We set targets to:

optimise our income and increase our resources by £712,000, through review of underperforming
contracts, to deliver more activity that helps our clients,
offer appropriate housing to tackle rough sleeping by the acquisition/lease of more bed spaces.
The table below shows the areas we have agreed to focus on to increase the resources available to the
organisation, the shaded metrics are directed by the Regulator of Social hlousing.
Increasing resources available to us
Turnover EOOO's

Target
2018-19

91,416

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

94,545 | 89,632 | 86,446 | 82,794

Client services

New business growth (total contract

792

3,104

1,900

111

424

181

712

611

581

200

200

250

2,404
21.81

2,407
23.04

2,425
22.75

23.25

10.49

11.75

11.36

10.78

2,015

3,800

2,374

2,338

value per annum) £000's
Net contribution from new business

£000's
Renegotiate underperforming
contracts £000's

Social investment secured for Social
Impact Bonds
Housing

Supported Housing (bed spaces)
Supported Housing cost per unit £
Supported Housing cost per unit
excluding support services and leased
charges £
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Target
2018-19
691
7,812

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

709

606
6,334

504

5,311

421
4,600

(6.1%)

(5.6%)

9,010

7,020

(8.5%)

7,767
(8.2%)

(7.1%)

75

71

97

10,129

12,855 | 10,548

We set growth and contract renegotiation targets to deliver more activity that helps our clients. Turnover before
fundraised income increased by £2.6 million to £81.7 million, £0.4 million better than budget. St Mungo's played
a significant role in delivering the Rough Sleeping Initiative introduced by the Ministry of hlousing, Communities
and Local Government (MHCLG) to deliver a range of services which sought to alleviate rough sleeping. £3.1
million of new service funding was secured via local authorities. This was partially offset by £1.5 million loss on
support service contracts. Renegotiation of underperforming contracts delivered a further £0.6 million net
contribution.

We set targets to acquire/lease more bed spaces, which we use to accommodate people who either have been
or who are at risk of homelessness, so that by 2024 we will have over 5,000 bed spaces. During the year, the
expected reduction in supported housing bed spaces for decanting of Spring Gardens to accommodate
development of the site was not required. Due to the nature of managing a changing portfolio of support service
contracts there is a lot of movement on managed properties. During the year we opened 2,302 and closed
2,334 tenancies and our average tenure term is 298 days due to the nature of our client group.
As well as reviewing our assets and improving our properties we increasingly look to models that allow us to
house more people in a cost effective and appropriate way. This includes further use of social investment to
procure significant numbers of leased properties in London, Oxford, Milton Keynes and Bristol regions through
the Real Lettings Property Funds. During the year Real Lettings bed spaces increased by 17%. This was ahead
of our anticipated increased in bed spaces as units were brought on faster than anticipated but phasing was
later than planned and so rental income in year was below budget.
St Mungo's Cost Per Unit (CPU) includes all support costs, which is staff time spent on providing support to our
clients as specified by commissioned services, costs many Regulated Providers (RPs) do not have. The
Regulator of Social Housing published Global Accounts for 2018 which included average cost per unit (CPU) of
£8.93 for RPs who specialised in supported housing. To provide a more meaningful comparison we separate
out the cost associated with support. St Mungo's CPU excluding support costs and leased charges is £11.75.
This is still higher than average as we require a higher than average level of management due to the amount of
support our clients require and the higher than average re-lets due to the temporary nature of our hostel
accommodation as explained above.

Year on year we budgeted the Supported Housing cost per unit excluding support services and leased charges
to go down by £0.87. It actually increased by £0.39 per unit as a result of higher staff costs, a continued rise in
property compliance costs, which were offset by contractual delays with our main major repairs suppliers. The
higher than anticipated staff costs (notably in one geographical region) were reviewed by the Services
Committee in January, following an internal investigation, and actions to tighten controls over shift management
have been implemented. The team providing property services was restructured during the year to meet the
growing needs of the business.

During the year our overall income from fundraising was at £12.9 million, significantly above the target we set
for the year. £2.9m has been set aside as a designated reserve to fund specific initiatives to support the
achievement of our strategic objectives to grow, strengthen and evidence our impact.
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Economy plans for 2019-20
We have set targets to continue to grow to meet the needs of our clients. Whilst there is an uncertain economic
environment the Board has approved modest growth objectives. Income is budgeted to increase to £106.9m.
There is a continued focus on optimising our income from existing contracts and growth is anticipated to deliver
£0.7 million and £0.4 million additional contribution to overheads respectively.
We have set targets to increase supported housing bed spaces to 2,620 through managed contracts, the
acquisition of units via St Mungo's Homes (a new subsidiary), and further growth in the Real Lettings portfolio
to 732 bed spaces.
Efficiency - using our resources well
During the year our objective was to focus on a series of value for money projects alongside continuing to work
to improve our efficiency on key areas in housing management such as voids, arrears and overheads and in
staffing such as staff sickness.
There are several significant areas where we have been focusing to improve our efficiency, the shaded metrics
are those directed by the Regulator of Social Housing. The table below shows our key results from 2018-19:
Efficient use of resource

Target
2018-19 (if
set)

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

Voids loss

7.0%

7.4%

7.7%

6.4%

8.3%

Bad debts

10.9%

10.3%

7.8%

8.4%

95%

94%

97%

96%

95%

3.42%

2.62%

1.7%

5.8%

Housing

Rent Collection

Former tenant arrears % gross rental
income

Annual maintenance cost per void/unit

£820

£1,238

£985

£737

£801

Repairs completed to timescale

95%

95%

93%

98%

95%

Reinvestment %

4.6%

2.8%

3.1%

2.9%

Operating margin on supported housing
lettings

5.9%

2.3%

1.1%

4.6%

4.0%

5.13%

5.6%

5.2%

4.9%

Procurement savings (£'000)

166

166

122

(£'000)

70

78

25

15%

14%

14%

15%

15%

Staffing
Lost time rate due to staff sickness
Overall

Other VFM savings

Overheads as a % of turnover

Operating margin overall %

3.7%

1.7%

15

4.5%

2.5%
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Target

Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual

2018-19(if
set)

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

3.5%

4.3%

2.1%

1.5%
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Net cash

Net cash

Net cash

Net cash

a) Housing Management

Our performance in managing voids and bad debt during the year has been a mixed picture. Investment has
been made in the team in response to the growth in units and the introduction of universal credit. When budgets
were set there was uncertainty over how housing benefit claims would be managed through universal credit and
prudent assumptions were used. The transition to universal credit has not been as fast as anticipated and as
such we have performed better than budget. In addition we have had a catch up on bad debt write offs in year.
Maintenance costs increased 25% year on year and were significantly ahead of budget. Maintenance costs, as
outlined above, have increased as a result of a team restructure and additional compliance activity. There has
also been a catch up on cyclical and reactive maintenance programmes. 95% of repairs are completed to
timescale in line with target.
St Mungo's Strategic Asset Management Plan aims to maximise our land value and deliver the most social

value from our portfolio. Meeting the needs of our clients is not wholly dependent on acquiring new properties.
Accommodation can be provided via short term leases or the reconfiguration of existing properties. St Mungo's
continued the development of Spring Gardens to maximise land use by replacing existing accommodation and
delivering a purpose built Hub and staging post accommodation. The redevelopment of one of our existing sites
to meet the needs of our clients, has been delayed pending the appointment of a development partner. Existing
properties have been reconfigured to secure support service contracts, optimising income, for example at Great
Guildford Street. The Board agreed the sale of Chepstow Villas in order to reinvest the receipt in new properties
and the sale is expected to complete in 2019-20. A property in Britannia Road was acquired to meet the delivery
needs in Bristol.

Great Guildford Street is a hostel in the London Borough of Southwark, providing 51 bedrooms. In 2014 St

Mungo's completed a full refurbishment of the building. However, since reopening there has not been a support
contract to cover the costs of support to clients living there (although hlousing Benefit has covered rent and

housing management). We have used a variety of funding mechanisms to pay for the support including working
with other local authorities to purchase placements for e.g. rough sleepers. However at budget setting 2018-19
the service was projected to be in budget deficit which triggered a Value for Money review. In addressing this
situation it was important that Great Guildford Street contributed in terms of social as well as economic value.
We consulted widely with internal stakeholders as well as with the local authority. Our proposal was to use 28
of the bedrooms to operate a project we had recently secured funding for from the Greater London Authority
(GLA). The High Needs Staging Post offers short term accommodation for people who have used our No Second
Night Out (NSNO) hubs and are waiting for more appropriate accommodation to become available. We also
clarified the funding for the remaining 23 beds, with 20 available for clients referred by outreach teams and 3
linked to another project we run on behalf of the GLA.

This new model significantly improved the financial position of the service in 2018-19 and into 2019-20 as well
as contributing to our strategic objectives regarding rough sleeping. During 2019-20 we will be carrying out a
full options appraisal of the building to ensure its efficiency and social value in the long term.
We reinvested 2.8% in new homes during 2018-19 which is below our budget and the 5.5% average
performance of Supported Housing Specialists per the Regulator of Social Housing Global Accounts 2018.
Reinvestment was lower than budgeted due to delays in stock improvement works being commissioned and
completed and expenditure delays in the Spring Gardens construction.
We have very low operating margin when compared to other housing associations which is largely due to the
higher running costs for our specialist client base.
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b) Staffing
Our lost time rate due to staff sickness for the year was 5.13%, a reduction from 5.6% in the previous year or a
reduction from 12.9 days absent per employee to 11.9 days absence per employee. Although still above our
target of 4% this demonstrates the actions taken have started to impact on reducing the absence rate.

We will continue to initiate early intervention for employees who are absent and support them appropriately
through management discussions and Occupational Health including self-referrals and identifying trauma
pathways. We can see that absence is being addressed earlier and that managers are using the procedure to
provide a fair, consistent and supportive framework for dealing with staff members affected by ill health.
c) Overall savings

During the year £166,000 of procurement savings have been achieved on tendering contracts for taxi services,
pest control, printing, Wi-Fi, electrical servicing and maintenance. A further £78,000 has been saved through
outsourcing the payroll function.

VFM metrics for gearing and interest cover (EBITDA MRI) are directed by the Regulator for Social Housing. We
currently have little debt and have £24.9 million cash balances. The Board has approved a Reserves and
Liquidity policy and set cautious minimum cash and reserve targets to support our growth objectives in light of
the uncertainty around Brexit.
Efficiency plans for 2019-20

We intend to invest £16.5m in properties to support the delivery of services over the coming 12 months. The
Spring Gardens development is due to complete in February 2020. The Board has approved the set-up of a
new subsidiary, St Mungo's hlomes, to acquire new properties from other housing associations. Investment will
be undertaken with reference to current operational delivery and future projections. We are continuing plans to
look at properties in our portfolio including our care homes. We are also working with other housing associations
to explore how we can use property that they are not able to use.
We intend to focus on a series of value for money projects alongside continuing to work to improve our efficiency
on key areas in housing management such as voids, arrears and overheads and in staffing such as staff
sickness. We are reviewing our housing management structure and investing in new supporting IT systems to
ensure that it is fully compliance and efficient.
We plan to move our head office in 2020 to a building where we will be able to co-locate with one of our services.
This arrangement will realise savings over a 20 year term as well as bringing our business support/central office
functions closer to services.

Effectiveness - the impact we create with our resources

Ensuring that we create a positive impact is of crucial importance to us. We exist to provide the housing and
support that enables people to rebuild their lives and we need to be sure that we are using our resources
effectively in support of this goal.

During the year we planned to develop our Performance, Compliance and Outcomes Monitoring Framework
and to continue to implement our Client Involvement Strategy which seeks to involve clients in the way the
organisation is developed and managed.

We have built on the success of our 'Solid Foundations' compliance programme by introducing a range
of new compliance measures from October 2018.

In the past year we have developed two sets of Excellence Standards - one for our services and one
for central support teams. They were developed via cross-organisational groups of managers, staff,
clients and volunteers. Every team was required to carry out a self-assessment against these standards
and create improvement action plans. Services are audited against them via our Quality Audit
programme.

We launched the Personal Excellence Standards in October 2018 which are directly linked to the
Service Excellence Standards and are used to set expectations during staff inductions and monitor
compliance via annual appraisals.

17

St Mungo Community Housing Association
Annual Report and Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019

Company Registered number 08225808
Homes England Registration LH0279
Charity number 1149085

We are in the first year of implementing our new Client Involvement Strategy which builds on the substantial
experience we have in this area. We have moved to a regional model and have Client Involvement Co-ordinators
. supporting Client Involvement within services in our three regions. This has also enabled us to expand Outside
In, our client representative body. For example, during 2018-19 we began to develop the first Bristol-based
Outside In group.
a) Client Satisfaction and Service Quality

Client satisfaction - every two years St Mungo's carries out a survey on satisfaction across our services. The
most recent survey was conducted between November 2018 and January 2019. Responses were received from
963 clients, 580 from clients in hostels and supported housing and 383 from clients of other services.
Overall, 93% of our clients are satisfied with the service we provide. In addition, 92% of our clients agree that
our services are helping them make positive changes in their life.

We see client involvement as an absolutely vital element in empowering our clients and improving the services
we offer. Last year 103 clients engaged with Outside In, our central client involvement group and 622 clients
engaged with client involvement activities across the organisation. Clients are involved in sitting on recruitment
panels, providing feedback on key organisational policies and strategies, developing and facilitating training
courses, representing St Mungo's externally in terms of our policy and influencing work as well as developing
and attending client involvement activities in their own services.

Furthermore, we have our own client 'shadow board' the Client Advisory Board which regularly meets with
trustees and the Executive to review board papers. We also have a trustee with lived experience of
homelessness sitting on the St Mungo's Board.

Client outcomes - In our hostels and supported housing services our role is to help clients access and engage
with the specialist support that is relevant to their needs. An important way of demonstrating our effectiveness,
therefore is showing the extent to which we do this. In these services our clients have structured support plans
to identify appropriate goals and record progress. The table below shows the support needs of clients from
those support plans and the percentage of those clients engaged with relevant specialist services or workers.
Support needs and engagement with specialist support in hostels and supported housing services
Clients with support
need

2018-19

2017-18 Clients engaged with
specialist support

2018-19

2017-18

Mental health

83%

81%

Mental health

52%

52%

Physical health

64%

64%

Physical health

81%

77%

Misuse prescribed drugs
or use illicit drugs

53%

52%

Misuse prescribed drugs
or use illicit drugs

51%

49%

Use of alcohol

37%

38%

Use of alcohol

40%

40%

Independent living skills

40%

41%

Independent living skills

51%

45%

The specialist services our clients need may be provided by external agencies or by St Mungo's. The level of
engagement is indicative of a range of factors - the clients own readiness for this level of support and the
availability of the required support in the right place at the right time. The support workers role is not only to help
the client feel that they are ready but then to enable them to find and access this support. Ultimately our aim is
that clients receive the support and then either no longer need it or are able to manage their engagement with
support without the intervention of their support worker who can move their focus onto other elements of the
support plan.

The number of our clients living in our hostels and supported housing who are registered with a GP has
continued to increase this year. 64% of our clients need support managing a physical health conduction and
83% need support with a mental health condition. Access to a GP is therefore fundamental to ensuring that our
clients receive the health care they need and are entitled to.
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2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

87%

85%

73%

69%

63%

74%

71%

72%

76%

79%

Clients registered with GPs
This indicator includes all clients that have been in a

residential St Mungo's project for more than 4 weeks.

Clients making planned moves to
alternative housing
This indicator looks at the percentage of departures
from St Mungo's residential services that were
'planned'. Departures from emergency bed spaces
have not been included in this calculation.

We would like to help more clients make planned moves to alternative accommodation. The business plan and
growth strategy include objectives to increase the supply of move on accommodation to address this need.
Our hostels and supported housing services measure many other outcomes - often these are determined by
commissioners. One of our business plan objectives is to improve how we communicate about our impact and
we are planning a project which will review the outcome and impact data we are collecting and rationalize it so
that we can provide a set of top level indicators for our reporting.
b) Housing supply

We have increased the supply of supported housing units by 0.1% in 2018-19. This compares to the 0.9%
reported by other Supported hlousing Specialists per the 2018 Global Accounts. We did not budget for growth
in owned units during the year, service delivery has grown through managed or leased properties.

We lease non-social housing accommodation via property funds managed by our Real Lettings team. Our new
supply of leased accommodation units is 17% in 2018-19 (compared to 27% in 2017-18) and is significantly
greater than the new supply of owned (rather than leased) non-social housing of other housing associations per
the 2017 Global Accounts. Our intentions to increase delivery in this area are discussed above.
Effectiveness plans for 2019-20

During 2019-20 we plan to finalise an organisational Outcomes and Impact Framework to ensure we
consistently capture our performance and achievements for every service. This will be used to inform the Board
and Executive and also to inform managers as to areas of success and areas of concern, as well as providing
assurance to regulators and commissioners. Once the framework is in place we will reconfigure the client
monitoring system to reflect the framework and produce a series of quarterly and annual reports.
We will build on the successes of projects such as 'Solid Foundations' and the 'Excellence Standards' with a
review and refresh of our Organisational Excellence Strategy, to ensure we draw on best practice and
continuously improve the quality of our services.

In 2019-20, the following projects will support our Women's Strategy 2019-22 (mentioned above):
Working towards Domestic Abuse Housing Alliance (DAHA) accreditation for St Mungo's
Defining and mapping women-only services and women-only offers in mixed services across all St
Mungo's geographies and conducting gap analysis
Review of organisational response to sexual violence
As identified by the client survey move on accommodation remains a concern for our clients. We intend to bridge
this gap through acquiring move on accommodation through our new subsidiary, St Mungo's Homes.
There is a project looking at how we measure our effectiveness outcomes across all of our services. This will
improve impact reporting and enable the Board to set challenging targets to improve effectiveness for clients.
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FUTURE PLANS
In February 2016, the St Mungo's board agreed a new Five Year Strategy setting out a clear ambition and
strategic direction for the organisation. We are now in the second phase of this strategy and following a review
in 2018 have a clear set of objectives - to grow, strengthen and evidence.
St Mungo's, as a large provider of services and housing for people experiencing or at risk of homelessness and
in particular rough sleeping, will do all we can to prevent, alleviate and enable recovery following homelessness.
This is why we will continue to influence the implementation and further development of the Government's
Rough Sleeping Strategy. Our Chief Executive, Howard Sinclair, is a member of the Advisory Panel and staff
from our operational and policy and strategy directorates also provide input to shape our advice.
Equally our growth strategy takes as a starting point that we should seek to deliver transformational services
that reduce rough sleeping by tackling it from all angles. We have made cautious projections on growth in light
of the uncertainty. However during 2019-20 we will implement innovative new service models such as the
Somewhere Safe to Stay hubs and deliver our Recovery Colleges in more locations.
We are also committed to continuing to strengthen our organisational culture and infrastructure. As well as our
continuing focus on the Solid Foundations programme, over the next year our plan to improve integration across
our information systems will move forward significantly.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The impact of austerity continues to affect those we aim to support, alongside other factors, notably around

welfare reform, access to healthcare and long term housing security.
We continue to be one of the largest homelessness charities in Britain, and a specialist housing association:
therefore, we remain confident we are in a position of relative strength. Our five year strategy, which sets out a
clear ambition and strategic direction, underpins our activities including our plans for growth.

We manage our reputational risk through robust compliance with legislation and policies, and a promotion of
excellent standards and culture, which mitigate the potential risk of reputational issues emerging. If issues are
raised, we use a range of policies, procedures and best practice to manage these to best effect in order to
safeguard clients, staff and the wider organisation. As we are regulated by a number of bodies, being both a
housing association and a charity, we recognise the importance of factoring risk management into daily
activities, particularly in order to ensure our vulnerable clients are best served through good practice.
Financially, as said earlier in this report, while the Regulator for Social hocusing acknowledged our business

plan is fully funded and based on reasonable assumptions, they also noted that the nature of our work is low
margin which reduces our ability to absorb adverse shocks. It is because of this that we maintain a robust focus
on our reserves and liquidity, including a significant level of cash reserves.
Further analysis of the strategic risks and mitigations is available in our risk section, starting on page 27.
This report was approved by the Board of Trustees on the 23 July 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Robert Napier

Chair

23 July 2019
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TRUSTEES' REPORT

The Trustees present the annual report and audited financial statements of St Mungo's for the year ended 31
March 2019. The financial position and results for the year are set out on pages 34 - 64 of these statements.
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
The Trustees have reported St Mungo's strategic objectives and outlined our activities within the Strategic
Report on pages 4 - 20.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
St Mungo Community hlousing Association ("the Group"), a registered housing association and charity, is made
up of a lead Association and four subsidiaries. Three of the subsidiaries are directly and wholly owned; the
fourth is a subsidiary of one of the wholly owned subsidiaries.
Street Impact London Limited and Street Impact Brighton Limited, both wholly owned subsidiaries (companies
limited by shares) provide housing and support to rough sleepers. Broadway hlomelessness and Support (a
registered charity and company limited by guarantee), holds a number of leasehold interests on behalf of St
Mungo's, its parent. Broadway Real Enterprises Limited (a company limited by guarantee) is a trading subsidiary
whose activity is the delivery of consultancy support, mainly HR advice but also database development, to small
and medium sized enterprises including those working in the field of homelessness.
St Mungo's has a 33% share in Social Impact Bristol Limited (company limited by shares), a consortium of three
charity partners set up to provide housing and support to rough sleepers.
These are the financial statements of the Group. Any activity relating to the Association will be specified. All
references to comparable 2018 figures are to those of the Group, unless otherwise specified.
The Board of St Mungo's is responsible for ensuring that a sound system of governance exists across the Group
and that it is financially viable and properly managed. The Board works alongside the Executive Team, which is
responsible for the day to day management of the Group.
The Board comprises 13 Trustees, who for purposes of company law are non-executive directors, who bring a
broad range of skills, knowledge and experience to their roles from fields including finance, legal and
government policy. During the year the Board met on eight occasions.
The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its decision, which includes overall strategy and future
development, allocation of financial resources, acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual results,
senior executive appointments, treasury policy and risk management. Responsibility for the Group's day to day
operations is delegated to the Chief Executive.
Board members are elected for a three year term at the Annual General Meeting. The Board reviews its
effectiveness and appraises its members annually. It identifies the skills it requires in order to fulfil its function
and recruits new members as required. The Board has established a maximum term of office for its members
of nine years.

The Board is covered by Trustees' indemnity insurance policy. No claims have been made during the year.
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During the year the Board has been supported by five committees:

Audit and Risk Committee reviews the integrity of financial reporting and ensures that a sound system
of internal control and risk management exists. It also manages the relationship with the internal and
external auditors.

Finance and Development Committee supports the Board in its responsibilities in relation to financial
planning, financial management and the scrutiny of financial performance. The Committee ensures that
St Mungo's makes best use of its property assets and reviews plans for the development of our housing
stock.

Fundraising Committee oversees all aspects of St Mungo's fundraising activity to ensure that the targets
set out in the fundraising strategy and business plan are achieved, that the Association is complying
with all of its legal and regulatory obligations in respect of its fundraising activity, and the Association is
responsive to and respectful of its donors.
Services Committee has oversight of housing management and care and support services. The
Committee reviews policies and plans to ensure services are responsive to client's needs and
scrutinises performance in key areas such as repairs, rent collection and health and safety.
People and Governance Committee has oversight of all aspects of the employment and remuneration
of staff. It also oversees Board recruitment, review and processes to ensure that the Board and
individual Trustees are accountable in the performance of their governance responsibilities.
St Mungo's is committed to involving clients in all aspects of our work, including in its decision-making structures.
The Client Advisory Board, made up of ten current or former clients of St Mungo's, reviews Board papers and
provides input for discussion at Board meetings.
Compliance with the Code of Governance
St Mungo's has adopted a Code of Governance which is designed to ensure that the Association operates to
the highest possible standards. An underlying principle of this is that we will comply with the National hlousing
Federation (NhlF) Code of Governance or explain any areas where we do not comply. The Board has reviewed
and confirmed compliance with all areas of the NHF Code with the exception of clause B4 relating to the
requirement that Boards should have no more than twelve members.
As part of an agreed strategy to increase diversity on the Board, two new members have recently been
appointed, bringing the total number of Board Members to thirteen. The Board is expected to continue to be
thirteen members until the next scheduled retirement in September 2020.
An assessment of compliance with the Charity Code of Governance has also been undertaken and an action
plan has been agreed to ensure compliance with all areas of the Charity Code.
Compliance with RSH Governance and Financial Viability Standard
Registered providers are required by their regulator, the Regulator of Social hlousing, to certify their compliance
with the Governance and Financial Viability Standard. The Board has reviewed compliance with the standard
and confirms that it complies in all material respects.

STAKEHOLDERS, TRANSPARENCY, EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY
We recognise that our success in supporting the recovery of our clients against the backdrop of the challenges
we face depends fundamentally on the skill, commitment and engagement of our supporters, staff and
volunteers.

Ourfundraising activity
St Mungo's is registered with the Fundraising Regulator and is a member of the Institute of Fundraising. As the
regulatory environment has continued to change over the last year we have adapted and challenged the way
we work to ensure we operate to a high standard.
Our donors and clients are at the heart of everything we do, and our practices aim to be more than just about
compliance, we want to ensure that our supporters are treated with the care and attention they deserve.
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The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) came into effect in May 2018. To comply with GDPR, we
reviewed all fundraising materials, consent options, and updated our consent and privacy statements. The
fundraising database was also updated to utilise the ability to record consent consistently and compliantly. We
also ceased our Door to Door Fundraising in 2018-19, resulting in us no longer working with hlome Fundraising.
We continue to have four Professional Fundraising Organisations (PFOs) working on our behalf, which are:
The Payroll Giving team
Payroll Giving in Action
STC Payroll Giving

Hands on Payroll Giving.
We follow up on all feedback we receive from members of the public to ensure compliance with the Fundraising
Regulations and ensure there is no unreasonable intrusion on a person's privacy.
In addition, we continue to run our own in-house street fundraising team. For this, we have a regular programme
of training and refresher training covering all aspects of the regulations that apply to this form of fundraising as
well as our own policies and procedures. Our training gives specific guidance on the protection of vulnerable
people, based on the Institute of Fundraising's "Treating Donors Fairly Guidance". As such, we guide fundraisers
to be upfront and tell the member of the public why we are communicating with them and check they are happy
to continue; to ask if the person would prefer to be contacted in a different way (email, letter) or at a different
time; and to check the person's understanding at relevant parts of the interaction and ask if there is anything
that needs further explanation.

We monitor the quality and practices of our team through our programme of mystery shopping, conducted on
our behalf by an independent organisation. In 2018-19 we commissioned 43 mystery shops, with good reports
overall. Where any issues were highlighted, we addressed them with the specific fundraisers and ran refresher
training.

Across the year and across all our fundraising activity, which in total resulted in over 400,000 donations, we
received 84 complaints about our fundraising. We regularly record, report and share positive unprompted
feedback about our work and our fundraising from the public along with many messages of support we receive
directly from our donors.

We have a formal process for resolving individual complaints. We also have a formal complaints review process:
we report and discuss complaints on a quarterly basis at the Fundraising Committee and annually at our Audit
and Risk Committee, both of which comprise members of our Board of Trustees. This, along with the training
and mystery shopping enables us to monitor and review our fundraising practices relating to the protection of
vulnerable people and ensure that there is no unreasonable intrusion on a person's privacy.
Every donation we receive is greatly appreciated. We wish to say a thank you to all our supporters who made
donations of their time and energy or gave financial support to St Mungo's during 2018-19, including those who
left us a special gift in their Will.
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Amongst the most significant donations received during the year were:

29th May 1961 Charitable Trust

London Councils

Adint Charitable Trust

London Housing Foundation

Albert Hunt Trust

Mind

Alchemy Foundation

Mrs Gwen Dennard

Andrew and Jane Haslewood

Mrs Smith and Mount Trust

Arthur Kay
Big Lottery Fund - hlelp Through Crisis

Ofenheim Charitable Trust

OxPAT

Big Lottery Fund - Reaching Communities
Big Lottery Fund - Wildlife Trusts - Our Bright Future

Paula Hawkins

Rob and Carina Sewell

Breadsticks Foundation

RobCollinge

Carnation Trust

Sam and Caroline Davis

Chris and Liz Sweetland

Sarah and Charles Martin

City Bridge Trust
City of London Corporation
Dan and Krystyna hlouser
David Lyon
Dr Ann Heywood

Sheepdrove Trust
St John's Foundation

Edward Harvist Trust

The Lennox hlannay Charitable Trust

Essex Trust

The Mackie Foundation

Freshfield Foundation

The Pargiter Trust

Garfield Weston Foundation

The Raindance Charitable Trust

hlackney Parochial Charities

The Rayne Foundation

Homeless Link - Reboot Project
Hyde Park Place Estate Charity

The Sobell Foundation

Spear Charitable Trust

Tay Charitable Trust
The Belpech Trust

Inner London Magistrates' Court's Poor Box Charity

The Story of Christmas
The Wigoder Family Foundation

James Cochrane

The Zochonis Charitable Trust

John Coates Charitable Trust
John Snook

Tony & Audrey Watson Charitable Trust
Vivian Child Charitable Trust

John Walter Wynne Charitable Discretionary Trust

Westminster Amalgamated Charity

Julian and Susie Knott

Westminster Foundation

Our People

We are committed to recruiting the very best people from diverse backgrounds and investing in their learning,
development and engagement. The success of our investment in our people has been evidenced by our recent
client satisfaction survey in which clients rated our staff as St Mungo's single biggest strength, with 95% of
respondents agreeing that staff are caring, compassionate and respectful.

This year we further refined our performance management processes by introducing clear performance
standards at service and individual levels for all our central services functions to mirror those for our client-facing
services. This was reflected in improved scores across the board in our annual central services customer
satisfaction survey.
360 feedback from colleagues, line reports, clients and other stakeholders is central to our performance
management and development scheme, and we procured a new automated system to make dissemination and
analysis of feedback questionnaires more efficient.
Through continued application of our 'Solid Foundations' approach to supporting compliance with key
organisational processes, our performance appraisals completion rate increased from 86% to 93% over the
year.
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We invested in a new e-recruitment platform to improve information, processes and user experience. We
procured and implemented a new e-learning system and have developed a suite of new on-line training
modules. This has enabled far better content control and reporting on completion of mandatory courses.
We introduced two new initiatives to support staff wellbeing: self-referrals to our Occupational Health service,
and a Trauma Pathway' to ensure consistent manager follow-up support for staff experiencing traumatic
incidents in our client-facing services. With the addition of these to our overall approach to supporting health
and attendance we reduced our sickness absence rate by one day per person on average.
We have continued our practice of our Executive Directors and Directors regularly attending team meetings
throughout the year to consult teams about proposed initiatives, what is working well and how they feel St
Mungo's could be more effective and efficient. This has enabled us to dynamically assess what is 'on top' for
staff and respond to ideas and concerns promptly. Also, through our Leadership Service Insight Programmes,
members of the Leadership Team have undertaken structured activities within client-facing services which has
enabled senior managers to stay in touch with the challenges facing clients and staff on a daily basis.
We were pleased to win the Charity Times Award for hlR Management.
Volunteer, Apprentice and Student involvement

Volunteering at St Mungo's has developed to become an integral and valued part of our work. Volunteers play
a vital role in supporting our clients and make a huge difference to the range of services we can offer homeless
people.

During the year, 1,200 volunteers undertook a variety of activities working in over 100 services. They support
us to embed a model where people donate their time, skills and experience but that also help us to engage with
the community and to help the community understand their role in helping people recover from homelessness.
This year has seen us significantly change the way in which volunteers are involved in our street outreach
services. Volunteer involvement and community engagement are a key part of our success and we have
embedded our Innovative Volunteer First Response model in Tower Hamlets, Westminster, Southwark and City
and Islington. This will enable outreach teams to dedicate more resource to the areas and the people that need
it. This will help us work towards our aim of halving rough sleeping. Over the year 91 volunteers have undertaken
353 shifts and contributed 2,135 hours of time.

We will be recruiting a Corporate Volunteering Coordinator who will support us to develop our approach to
embedding our corporate partnerships and offering them the opportunity to engage their staff, who in turn can
offer their skills and develop their understanding of the causes and consequences of homelessness.

We have developed client progression pathways which map the ways in which clients can use their time
meaningfully in the organisation. We offer placements in operational services and central support functions
Our Apprenticeship scheme for people with lived experience of homelessness has now had over 220
apprentices on the scheme. We are proud to have won the Best Apprenticeship scheme award at Inside hlousing
and the Learning awards and to have been shortlisted for the hlR Excellence awards. We have developed the
roles we offer and currently have apprentices in our Property Services, Research and Client Involvement teams.
We are in the process of developing gardening and property maintenance apprenticeships.
Our student placement team works with over 250 students a year from universities across the UK and Europe.
We provide placements of social work, nursing and paramedic students in order to influence future professionals
and help shape their practice. Our work with London South Bank University was awarded the Partnership of the
Year award at the Nursing Times ceremony, helping to raise the profile of the scheme and the organisation.
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Diversity and Inclusion

Inclusion is one of our core values and valuing the backgrounds, experiences and strengths of our staff and
clients is integral to our work. St Mungo's is seen as a leader around Diversity and Inclusion within our sector
and our commitment has been recognised through a number of awards:
Rated 42nd in Stonewall's workplace equality index of top 100 LGBT-friendly employers in the UK, up
30 places from last year.
Winner of Diversity and Inclusion (Public Sector) Award at the Personnel Today Awards
Shortlisted for a Pink News Third Sector Equality Award in recognition of our commitment to our LGBT
staff and clients, for British Quality Foundation's Excellence in Diversity Award and the UK Housing
Award's Diversity and Inclusion Pioneer Award.
hlighly Commended for Best Diversity and Inclusion Initiative, CIPD People Management Awards 2018
and for the Leadership Award at BITC Race Equality Awards.
Listed in the BITC 2018 Best Employers for Race listing.

We are a Disability Confident Employer (registered with the Disability Confident scheme) and are fully committed
to supporting people with disabilities to work with us. This includes providing equal employment, training, and
promotion of staff with disabilities. We have also signed the Mindful Employer charter to demonstrate that we
are positive about mental health and are accredited under the hlealthy Workplace Charter.
This year our new Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 2019-22 Strategy was signed off by our Board. Our strategy
sets out a vision where staff, clients and volunteers from all backgrounds can be their best selves, bringing
together experiences, commitment and expertise to deliver a personalised recovery approach. We plan to drive
forward diversity initiatives and continuously improve our performance. We have seven Diversity Networks
which meet regularly and work together to help shape the strategic direction of our inclusion practices. They
are:

•

Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic Network
Disability Awareness Network
Irish Network

•

LGBTQIA Network
Staff with Lived Experience (of using services) Network
Carers and Parents Network
Women's Action Network.

We also have 150 Diversity and Inclusion Allies across the organisation who champion D&l within their teams,
help to plan awareness raising events, challenge any non-inclusive practices and come together quarterly to
network, share best practice and learn. We have set ourselves a target to have at least one trustee member
from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic background on the main Board by 2020.
MODERN SLAVERY ACT
Information about St Mungo's compliance with the Modern Slavery Act, which seeks to curb slavery and human
trafficking, is available on ourwebsitewww.mungos.org. This was last updated in October 2018 and is reviewed
annually to ensure we continually improve our practice in this area.
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Ultimate responsibility for health and safety lies with the Board who must ensure that the Chief Executive has
robust arrangements in place for managing the risks and monitoring compliance. The Board has agreed an
overarching Health and Safety policy which sets out our approach to meeting our legal obligations and ensuring
the safety of our clients and staff. Health and safety is a top priority for the Board and an update on health and
safety matters is reviewed at every meeting.
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The Services Committee and People and Governance Committee are responsible for monitoring health and
safety activity related to properties and our staff, respectively. At an operational level the Health and Safety
Steering Group oversees any changes to our safety management system and is chaired by the Executive
Director of People and Governance and the Executive Director of Services is also a member. Our Health and
Safety Committee meets quarterly to provide a forum for staff to raise health and safety issues and input into
the implementation of policies and procedures.
Health and Safety is identified as a key strategic risk for the Group (see page 28). As a result, throughout 201819 we have continued to improve our monitoring processes and review and update our policies and practice in

this area. A key priority during the year has been reviewing our approach to fire risk management and ensuring
robust systems and processes for the follow up of remedial actions.
RESERVES POLICY
Reserves are that part of the Group's funds that are freely available to spend on any of the Group's purposes.
This definition excludes restricted reserves which arise from specific restrictions being imposed on the reserves
by the donor. As a Group which has no complex financial arrangements, the Group and Association's reserves
are made up of the liquid working capital offset by provisions for long-term liabilities associated with property
and pension commitments.

The minimum range of Cash and Free Reserves as define in the Reserves and Liquidity Policy have been
recalculated using the stress testing of the latest version of the Financial Plan. The buffer required to avoid
depleting Cash or Free Reserves measured on a monthly basis over 18 months under the stress testing
scenarios are as follows:
Free reserves - £8 million

Cash (or cash equivalents) - £16 million
Total reserves at 31 March 2019 were £16.3 million (2018: £17.7 million). We held restricted reserves of £2.1
million (2018: £1.3 million) and unrestricted or free reserves of £14.2 million (2018: £16.4 million). Free reserves
include a £2.9 million designated reserve to support future growth and fund transformation projects. The yearend cash balance was £24.9 million (2018: £23.0 million).
The Trustees have reviewed the reserves of the Association and Group taking into consideration future activity,
uncertainties and risks and have concluded the level of reserves shown at 31 March 2019 is appropriate to
maintaining the continuation of the Association and Group.
INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for establishing and overseeing a system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit and Risk Committee provides oversight on behalf of the Board
regarding the system of risk management and internal control and regularly reviews its effectiveness.
The system of internal control exists to give reasonable assurance about the reliability of financial and
operational information within St Mungo's and the safeguarding of the organisation's assets and interests.
No system of internal control can provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The system
of internal control is designed to manage risk and to provide reasonable assurance that key business objectives
and expected outcomes will be achieved.

The process followed to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks faced by the organisation is ongoing,
has been in place during the past financial year and is reported regularly to the Board. The risk management
and control processes are not a separate annual exercise but are a continuous function.
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Risk management approach

The Board has overall responsibility for the oversight of risk management at St Mungo's and has agreed an
Organisational Risk policy which sets out how risks are identified, assessed and managed across the
organisation. During the year the Board reviewed its risk appetite and agreed risk tolerance levels which are
used to guide our day to day activities.
The Executive Team regularly identifies and reviews the risks facing the organisation. The risk register is
reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Audit and Risk Committee to ensure the effectiveness of existing controls
and mitigating actions. An update on major risks is provided to the Board quarterly.
Risk Appetite
As a homelessness charity, we choose to reach out to people who are often the most excluded by society and
other services because of their multiple and complex needs. We have a high risk appetite for those people to
whom we provide our services and for the range of services that we provide to them
Our clients have complex and changing needs and this brings inherent risk in relation to our reputation, we
mitigate this by having a low risk appetite in terms of compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and our
internal policies and processes.

We work in a rapidly changing environments where funding streams can be uncertain and changes in policy
and public opinion can have a profound impact on our work. We mitigate this by having a low risk appetite in
terms of our financial sustainability.
We expect to take risks, within the context of our risk appetite and our financial sustainability, in order to grow
our services and deliver our mission to reduce homelessness and rebuild lives.
Key strategic risks

During the year the Board and the Audit and Risk Committee have focused on the following key strategic risks:
Risk

Control and mitigation
We are not financially resilient The Board carries out regular stress testing to understand the impact of
as a result of changes in the external factors on the financial plan. Given the current uncertainty around
economy, government policy Brexit, the Board has agreed a number of mitigating actions to manage the
and the competitive market.
potential impact. We continue to actively model the emerging risk in this
area.

We are unable to recruit and We have established a workforce planning and talent management group

retain the quantity of staff to devise plans for resourcing growth in our services. We have a number of
needed to deliver the strategic initiatives in place to support the development of talent within St Mungo's.
priorities agreed by the Board. Our succession arrangements for key roles are reviewed annually.

Flexibility of IT systems to The Board has agreed a strategy to replace existing IT systems and support
support the change and growth growth across the organisation. Implementation of the project is underway
agendas within the business.
and this year we anticipate mobilising new systems in a number of key
areas. Oversight is provided by a project steering group which includes
external expertise.
Failure to protect clients from We regularly review our policies and procedures for the safety of clients
harm caused by staff or and staff. A programme of service reviews and inspections is in place. Our
corporate negligence.
'Solid Foundations' programme has significantly improved compliance with
core non-negotiables. We have robust pre-employment and referencing
checks in place.
Failure to comply with landlord
health and safety legislation
resulting in death or serious
injury.

We have a comprehensive suite of landlord health and safety policies in
place and provide compulsory training for staff. A steering group provides
oversight of the management of safety across our services and buildings.
We have robust systems in place to monitor and report on compliance.
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Internal assurance

A framework of key performance indicators and regular reporting to the Executive Team, subcommittees and
ultimately the Board aims to ensure that any control issues are identified and that corrective action is taken.

St Mungo's runs a quality audit programme for its client facing services to identify areas of good practice and
highlight any improvements that are needed. The Services Committee reviews the outcome of these reviews
on a quarterly basis.
Internal audit

St Mungo's internal audit function, delivered by Mazars LLP, is used to provide objective assurance on our
control framework and management of risks. Internal audit is not responsible for the design and construction of
control systems but undertakes a role to assess their effectiveness.

A programme of internal audits has been overseen by the Audit and Risk Committee in order to gain assurance
on significant areas of risk and also to check compliance with key controls. The audit reports demonstrate that
the Board can take adequate assurance from the control framework in place across St Mungo's in 2018-19.
Where weaknesses were identified during the year, these have been addressed.
External assurance

The Board has reviewed assurance from a number of external regulatory sources during the year including the
Regulator of Social hlousing and the Care Quality Commission.

We have continued to liaise with the Regulator of Social Housing regarding material risks during 2018-19. In
April 2019, the Regulator issued a Regulatory Judgement confirming that St Mungo's meets their governance
requirements and upgrading our rating to G1.
During the year we have maintained our V2 financial viability rating demonstrating that we have the financial
capacity to deal with a reasonable range of adverse scenarios but need to manage material risks to ensure
continued compliance.

St Mungo's has two care homes, both of which were inspected by the Care Quality Commission during 201819 and achieved an overall grading of 'good'.
External audit assurance

The work of our external auditors provides further independent assurance on the control environment. Any
weaknesses in internal control identified by our external auditors are considered by the Audit and Risk
Committee and the Board along with an action plan to address any issues.
Fraud & Whistleblowing

A Fraud Register has been maintained during the year and reviewed regularly by the Audit and Risk Committee.
During the period there were several minor frauds relating to petty cash and one incident of unauthorised use
of a corporate credit card.
St Mungo's has a Whistleblowing Policy that encourages employees and others to express any serious concerns
regarding suspected misconduct or malpractice within the organisation. There were no significant cases
reported to the Audit and Risk Committee during 2018-19.
Conclusion

The Board has considered the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system in place across
the organisation for the year ended 31 March 2019 and has concluded that St Mungo's has an adequate,
effective and reliable framework of internal control and effective risk management and governance processes
which provides assurance regarding the effective and efficient achievement of the organisation's objectives.
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Auditor

Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, RSM UK Audit LLP have indicated their willingness to be
reappointed for another term and a resolution to re-appoint them will be proposed by the Board.
Disclosure of Information to the Auditor

The Board who held office at the date of the approval of this Trustees' Report confirm that in so far as the Board
is aware:
there is no relevant audit information of which the Association's auditor is unaware
•

the Board has taken all the steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Certain information as required by Schedule 7 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) regulations has been included within the Strategic Report. As permitted by section 414C
(11) details of future developments, analysis of the development and performanceof the business, commentary
of key performance indicators and financial review are included in the Strategic Report.
This report was approved by the Board in their capacity as company directors.

Robert Napier
Chair
23 July 2019
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The Board is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Trustees' Report and the financial statements,
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Board members (who are also directors of the Association for the purpose of company law) are required by
Company law and registered social housing legislation to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Association and of the Group's income
and expenditure for that period. In preparing each of the Group and Association financial statements, the Board
is required to:
•
select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
•
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group and the Association will continue their activities.
The Board is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group's and Association's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group and Association and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction of Private Registered Providers
of Social Housing 2015. The Board has general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The Board is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Group's website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
This report was approved by the Board of Trustees on the 23 July 2019 and signed on its behalf by:
By order of the Board

Robert Napier
Chair

23 July 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST MUNGO COMMUNITY HOUSING
ASSOCIATION
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of St Mungo Community Housing Association (the 'parent company')
and its subsidiaries (the 'group') for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise the consolidated and
association statement of comprehensive income, consolidated and association statement of financial position,
consolidated and association statement of changes in reserves, consolidated statement of cash flows and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland"
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2019
and of the group's income and expenditure for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Housing
and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social h4ousing
2015.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:
the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or
the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the group's or the parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.
Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit

of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the Strategic Report and the Trustees' Annual Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
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the Strategic Report and the Trustees' Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and
the Trustees' Annual Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made;or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Respective responsibilities of Trustees
As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 31, the Trustees (who are
also the directors of the company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the group's and parent
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the group or the
parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have been appointed auditors under the Companies Act 2006 and section 151 of the Charities Act 2011
and report in accordance with those Acts.
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: https://www.frc.ora.uk/auditorsresponsibilities . This description forms part of
our auditor's report.
Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body, for our audit wqfk, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

R^rf^ 'XL c^oa^)
Andrew Monteith (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Marlborough House
Victoria Road South

ChelmsfordCMI 1LN
Date 3e',^.
fJtf U-^V

Ao<<\

^
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Unrestricted Restricted

Note £'000 £'000

Total Total
2019 2018
£'000 £'000

TURNOVER

3

90,911

3,634

94,545 89,632

Operating expenditure

3

(88,269)

(2,796)

(91,065) (85,554)

OPERATING SURPLUS

8

2,642

838

Gain on disposal of freehold property

9

Interest receivable

6

86
20

86 90
20 83

Interest payable and similar charges
Gain/(loss) from associate
SURPLUS BEFORE TAX

7
13

(290)

(290) (113)

Taxation

11

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

3,480

4,078

27 (27)
4,111

27
2,485

838

3,323

2,485

838

3,323

4,111

Other comprehensive income:
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined benefit scheme
Actuarial losses in respect of pension schemes

25
25

(3,056)

(3,056)

(1,715)

(1,715)

(2,286)

838 (1,448)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE
YEAR

The consolidated results relate wholly to continuing activities.
The accompanying notes on pages 39 - 64 form part of these financial statements.
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Unrestricted Restricted
Note £'000 £'000

Total Total
2019 2018
£'000 £'000

TURNOVER

3 94,222 3,634

97,856

89,220

Operating expenditure

3 (87,858) (2,796)

(90,654)

(85,003)

OPERATING SURPLUS

8

6,364

7,202

4,217

Gain on disposal of property

9
6
7

86
20

86
20

90
83

Interest receivable

Interest payable and similar charges
SURPLUS BEFORE TAX

838

(262)

(109)

6,208

838

7,046

4,281

6,208

838

7,046

4,281

(262)

11

Taxation

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income:
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined benefit scheme
Actuarial losses in respect of pension schemes
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

25
25

(3,056)

(3,056)

(1,715)

(1,715)

1,437

The Association's results relate wholly to continuing activities.
The accompanying notes on pages 39 - 64 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED AND ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Note

Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Association

2019 2018
£'000 £'000

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets 12a
Housing properties 12b

201
81,608

81,415

201
81,608

Other fixed assets 12c
Investment in subsidiaries 13
Investment in associate 13
Share of associate 13

762

802

762
115
16

81,415
802
308
16
82,541

16

82,587

82,217

82,702

Trade and other debtors 1 5

410
14,750

10,135

410
14,626

10,281

Cash and cash equivalents 22

24,859

22,997

24,616

22,455

40,019

33,132

39,652

32,736

CURRENT ASSETS

Land and properties for sale 14

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16
NET CURRENT ASSETS

(19,175) (17,486) (19,100) (21,167)
15,646
11,569
20,844
20,552

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

103,431

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 1 7
Retirement benefit obligations 25
Provisions for liabilities
Pension - deficit funding liability 20
Other provisions 20
Minority interest 13

(74,179)

97,863 103,254 94,110

(71,080)

(11,368)

(25)
(1,584)

(7,661)
(1,388)
(11)

(73,774)
(11,368)

(70,833)

(25)

(7,661)
(1,388)

(1,584)

(87,156) (80,140) (86,751) (79,882)
TOTAL NET ASSETS

16,275

RESERVES
Restricted reserve
Designated reserves
Income and expenditure reserve
TOTAL RESERVES

21
21
21

17,723

16,503

14,228

2,147 1,309 2,147 1,309

2,884 - 2,884
11,244 16,414 11,472 12,919
14,228
16,275
16,503
17,723

The accompanying notes on pages 39 - 64 form part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue 23 July 201 9 and are signed on its behalf

by:

1^
Robert Napier
Chair

Tim Gadd

23 July 2019

23 July 2019

Trustee
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total
reserve reserves reserve reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance as at 1 April 2017
Surplus for the year
Balance at 31 March 2018

12,784
3,630
16,414

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year

(5,170)

Balance at 31 March 2019

11,244

2,884
2,884

828
481
1,309
838
2,147

13,612
4,111
17,723

(1,448)
16,275

Designated reserves form part: of the unrestricted and free reserves.

ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Unrestricted Designated Restricted Total
reserve reserves reserve reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
9,119

Balance as at 1 April 2017
Surplus for the year

828
481
1,309

3,800

Balance at 31 March 2018

12,919

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year

(1,447)

2,884

838

Balance at 31 March 2019

11,472

2,884

2,147

Designated reserves form part of the unrestricted and free reserves.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Note
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash generated from operations

22

Interest received

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2019
£'000

2018
£'000

588
20
608

5,916
83
5,999

(3,467)

(3,491)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets

162

Proceeds on disposal affixed assets

363

(16)

Purchase of Investments

2,061

Grants received

4,434

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1,129 (1,083)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid
Loan finance

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

22

38

(30)

(4)

155
125

247
243

1,862

5,159

22,997

17,838

24,859

22,997
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
1. LEGAL STATUS
St Mungo Community hlousing Association ("the Association") is a company limited by guarantee, a public
benefit entity and is an English registered social housing provider.
The address of the Association's registered office and principal place of business is St Mungo's, 5th Floor, 3
Thomas More Square, London E1W 1YW.
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (UK GAAP) including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland" ("FRS 102"), the Housing SORP 2014 "Statement of Recommended Practice for Registered Housing
Providers" and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on a going concern basis.
The Association is both a registered charity and a registered provider of social housing, and sees both of
these areas represented significantly in its activities. In particular, it receives a large amount of charitable
income and incurs related expenditure to do this. The Board considers that the financial statements should be
prepared to reflect the Association's aims and to satisfy the different needs of users. Therefore the Statement
of Comprehensive Income differentiates between restricted and unrestricted funds.
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000, except where
otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
Under the Companies Act 2006 the Group has prepared consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements incorporate those of the Association and all of its subsidiaries (i.e. entities that the Group
controls through its power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain economic benefits). All
financial statements are made up to 31 March 2019.
All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used into line with those used by other members of the Group.
Where the Group does not control the financial and operating policies of an entity but is able to exert significant
influence over them then that entity is accounted for as an Associate. The Group includes its share of the entities
result and financial position in its consolidated financial statements.
REDUCED DISCLOSURES
In accordance with FRS 102, the Association has taken advantage of the exemption from the following
disclosure requirement in the individual financial statements of the Association under Section 7 'Statement of
Cash Flows' - Presentation of a Statement of Cash Flows and related notes and disclosures.

TURNOVER AND REVENUE RECOGNITION
Turnover comprises rental and service charge income receivable in the period net of rent and service charge loss
from voids, fees and revenue grants receivable from Local Authorities, the Regulator of Social Housing, other
Government departments and charitable bodies, amortisation of deferred capital grants, donations and income
from fundraising activities and other services provided in the year (excluding VAT).

39

St Mungo Community Housing Association Company Registered number 08225808
Annual Report and Financial Statements for Homes England Registration LH0279
the year ended 31 March 2019 Charity number 1149085

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development reach practical completion or
otherwise become available for letting, net of any voids.
Revenue grants are receivable when the conditions for receipt of agreed grant funding have been met.
Donations and income from fundraising activities are recognised when the Group has entitlement to these and
receipt is probable.
Charges for support services funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due under the
contractual arrangements with Administering Authorities.
OTHER INCOME
Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the
effective interest rate.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software - Internal and external costs incurred during the preliminary stage of developing computer software
for internal use are expensed as incurred. Internal and external costs incurred to develop computer software for
internal use during the application development stage are capitalised if the company expects economic benefits
from the development. Capitalisation in the application development stage begins once the company can reliably
measure the expenditure attributable to the software development and has demonstrated its intention to
complete and use the software. Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 4
years.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - HOUSING PROPERTIES
Housing properties are properties for the provision of social housing and are principally properties available for
rent.

Completed housing properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes the cost of acquiring land and buildings, and expenditure incurred during the development period.
Works to existing properties which replace a component that has been treated separately for depreciation
purposes, along with those works that enhance the economic benefits of the assets, are capitalised as
improvements. Such enhancements can occur if improvements result in:
• An increase in rental income;

A material reduction in future maintenance costs;

A significant extension to the life of the property;

DONATED LAND AND OTHER ASSETS
Land or other assets which have been donated by a government source is added to the cost of assets at the
fair value of the land at the time of the donation. The difference between the fair value of the asset donated

and the consideration paid is treated as a non- monetary government grant and included within the Statement
of Financial Position as a liability. The terms of the donation are considered to be performance related
conditions. Where the donation is not from a public source, the value of the donations less the consideration is
included in income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Government grants include grants receivable from hlomes England, local authorities and other government
bodies.

Government grants are recognised at the fair value of the asset received or receivable when there is

reasonable assurance that the grant conditions will be met and the grants will be received
Government grants received for housing properties are recognised as income over the useful economic life
of the structure of the asset and, where applicable, the individual components of the structure (excluding land)
under the accruals model.

Government grants relating to revenue are recognised as income over the periods when the related costs are
incurred once reasonable assurance has been gained that the Association will comply with the conditions and
the funds will be received.

OTHER GRANTS
Grants received from non-government sources are recognised using the performance model. Grants are
recognised as income when the associated performance conditions are met.

DEPRECIATION OF HOUSING PROPERTIES
Freehold land or assets under construction are not depreciated.
The Group separately identifies the major components of its housing properties and charges depreciation so
as to write-down the cost of each component to its estimated residual value, on a straight line basis over the
shorter of the length of the lease or the following years:
Structure
Land
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Pitch roof
Flat roof
Windows
Electrical works
Boilers

60 years

Nil
10 years
15 years
60 years
20 years
25 years
15 years
10 years

LAND AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Land and properties surplus to requirements are classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying
amount and net realisable value.

IMPAIRMENTS OF FIXED ASSETS
An assessment is made at each reporting date of whether indications exist that an Asset or Cash Generating

Unit (CGU) may be impaired, or that an impairment loss previously recognised has fully or partially reversed.
If such indications exist, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
Service potential of an asset and cash flow generation are considered in our assessment. Where there is an
indication that an asset or CGU may be impaired, the recoverable amount of any affected asset or CGU is
estimated and compared with its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use for social housing (VIU-SH). The fair value less cost to sell is estimated using the

market value of the property less cost to sell where a market exists, or the existing use value calculation for
social housing (EUV-Shl). Impairment losses are recognised through expenditure.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have
ceased to apply. Reversals of impairment losses are recognised through expenditure. On reversal of an
impairment loss, the depreciation or amortisation is adjusted to allocate the asset's revised carrying
amount (less any residual value) over its remaining useful life.
OTHER TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost, net of depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of each asset to its estimated residual value on a straight line basis over its expected useful life, as
follows:Motor vehicles

Office equipment, fixtures and fittings
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements

over 4 years
over 4 years
over 4 years
up to the break clause in the lease

Residual value is calculated on prices prevailing at the reporting date, after estimated costs of disposal, for
the asset as if it were at the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.
TAXATION
St Mungo Community hlousing Association has charitable status and is registered with the Charity
Commission and is therefore exempt from paying Corporation Tax on charitable activities.
Irrecoverable VAT is not separately analysed and is charged to expenditure when incurred. It is allocated as
part of the expenditure to which it relates.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. Deferred tax is not discounted.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of all timing differences that exist at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered by the
reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable surpluses.
Deferred tax is recognised on income or expenses from subsidiaries that will be assessed to or allow
for tax in a future period except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the timing difference and
it is probable that the timing difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Current and deferred tax is charged or credited as income or expenditure, except when it relates to items
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or equity, when the tax follows the transaction or event it
relates to and is also charged or credited to other comprehensive income, or equity.
LEASES
Operating Leases

The Group enters into operating leases for which the annual rentals are charged to expenditure on a straight
line basis over the lease term. Rent free periods or other incentives received for entering into an operating
lease are accounted for as a reduction to the expense and are recognised, on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense. Employees are entitled
to carry forward up to five days of any unused holiday entitlement at the reporting date. The cost of any unused
entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee's services are received.
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The best estimate of the expenditure required to settle an obligation for termination benefits is recognised
immediately as an expense when the Group is demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of an
employee or to provide termination benefits.
RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution plans

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged is the contributions payable in the year. Differences
between contributions payable in the year and contributions paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments.
Defined benefit plans

The group participates in two funded multi-employer defined benefit schemes, the Social Housing Pension
Scheme (SHPS) and Pension Trust's Growth Plan (GP). Both schemes are closed to new employees.
For the GP, contributions are recognized in the period to which they relate as there is insufficient information
available to use defined benefit accounting. A liability is recognised for contributions arising from an agreement
with the multi-employer plan that determines how the Group will fund a deficit. Contributions are discounted
when they are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the period end.
For the SHPS, retirement benefits to employees of the Association are funded by contributions from all
participating employers and employees in the Scheme. Payments are made to a fund operated by the Pensions
Trust, an independent trust providing superannuation benefits for employees of voluntary organisations.
Therese payment are made in accordance with periodic calculations by consulting actuaries and are based on
pension costs applicable across the various participating as a whole.
The assets and liabilities of St Mungo's share of the pension are now included on the Statement of Financial
Position, where as in the prior year a provision was included, linked to the stream of deficit contributions. Thereby
adopting the amendment to FRS1 02, issued in May 2019, early. Actuarial assumptions are applied to determine
each organisation's share of liabilities. The assumptions are updated at the year end, and the changes to the
position go through the Other Comprehensive Income statement and not through the normal income and
expenditure account, as there is not sufficient information to restate the comparative. The rate used to discount
the benefit obligations to their present value is based on market yields for high quality corporate bonds with
terms and currencies consistent with those of the benefit obligations.
The scheme is administered by trustees and is independent of the Group finances. Contributions are paid to the
scheme in accordance with the recommendations of an independent actuary to enable the trustees to meet from
the scheme the benefits accruing in respect of current and future service. The cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method.
The net defined benefit asset/liability represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation minus the
fair value of plan assets out of which obligations are to be settled. Any asset resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of available refunds or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
Surpluses or deficits recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:
• The change in the net defined benefit liability arising from employee service during the year is recognised
as an employee cost
The cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments are recognised as incurred.
Net interest on the defined benefit asset/liability comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation
and interest income on plan assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the plan assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate to discount the benefit obligations.

Surpluses or deficits recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial surpluses and deficits
• The difference between the interest income on the plan assets and the actual return on the plan assets.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments' and Section 12
Other Financial Instruments Issues' of FRS 102, in full, to all of its financial instruments. Financial assets and

financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument, and are offset only when the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Financial assete
Debtors

Debtors which are receivable within one year and which do not constitute a financing transaction are initially
measured at the transaction price. Debtors are subsequently measured at amortised cost, being the transaction
price less any amounts settled and any impairment losses.
A provision for impairment of debtors is established when there is objective evidence that the amounts due
will not be collected according to the original terms of the contract. Impairment losses are recognised in income
for the excess of the carrying value of the debtor over the present value of the future cash flows discounted
using the original effective interest rate. Subsequent reversals of an impairment loss that objectively relate to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, are recognised immediately in income.
Financial liabilities
Creditors

Creditors payable within one year that do not constitute a financing transaction are initially measured at the
transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost, being the transaction price less any amounts
settled.

Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at the transaction price, including transaction costs, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised on the basis
of the effective interest method and is included in interest payable and other similar charges.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
A financial asset is de-recognised only when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are settled, or
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to another party, or if some significant risks
and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. A financial liability (or part thereof) is derecognised when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the Group has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event
which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and that obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect
of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted
at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised within interest payable and similar charges.
RESERVES
The Group establishes restricted funds for specific purposes where their use is subject to restrictions imposed
by third parties. Designated reserves are established as appropriate and are part of unrestricted free reserves.
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3. TURNOVER, COST OF SALES, OPERATING COSTS AND OPERATING SURPLUS
Continuing activities - Group

2019

Operating

Operating

Turnover expenditure surplus/(deficit)
£'000
£'000
£'000

SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Income and expenditure from social housing lettings (note 4)
OTHER SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Supporting people contract income

36,566

35,711

855

22,673

22,353

320

1,110
11,814
1,070
12,855
497
193
7,767
94,545

1,383
13,343
2,482
3,338
1,014
3,666
7,775
91,065

NON SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Criminal Justice Group
Support Services

Skills and Employment
Fundraising
Central Activities

Central Services
Real Lettings

(273)
(1,529)
(1,412)
9,517

(517)
(3,473)
(8)
3,480

2018

Operating Operating
Turnover expenditure surplus/(deficit)
£'000 £'000 £'000
SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Income and expenditure from social housing lettings (note 4)
OTHER SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Supporting people contract income
NON SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Criminal Justice Group
Support Services

Skills and Employment

35,544

35,161

383

24,257

23,011

1,246

1,479

1,527

(48)

9,606

10,215

(609)

766

2,083
3,574
1,197
2,574
6,212
85,554

(1,317)

10,548

Fundraising
Central Activities

558
540
6,334
89,632

Central Services

Real Lettings

45

6,974
(639)

(2,034)
122

4,078
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3. TURNOVER, COST OF SALES, OPERATING COSTS AND OPERATING SURPLUS CONTINUED
Continuing activities - Association

2019

Operating

Operating
expenditure surplus/(deficit)
£'000
£'000
£'000

Turnover

SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
36,566

35,711

855

Supporting people contract income

22,673

22,353

320

NON SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Criminal Justice Group
Support Services

1,110
11,867

1,383
13,318
2,281
3,338
829
3,666

Income and expenditure from social housing lettings (note 4)
OTHER SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES

853

Skills and Employment

12,855
407

Fundraising
Central Activities

192

Central Services
Real Lettings

Grant received from Broadway hlomelessness and Support

7,767
3,566
97,856

(273)
(1,451)
(1,428)
9,517

(422)
(3,474)

7,775

(8)

90,654

3,566
7,202

2018
Operating
Turn-r ex°p^a surplus/(deficit)
£'000 £'000
SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Income and expenditure from social housing lettings (note 4)
OTHER SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Supporting people contract income
NON SOCIAL HOUSING ACTIVITIES
Criminal Justice Group
Support Services
Skills and Employment
Fundraising
Central Activities

Central Services
Real Lettings

46

£'000

35,544

35,161

383

24,257

23,011

1,246

1,527

(48)
(470)
(1,317)

1,479
9,563
528
10,548
428
540
6,333
89,220

10,033
1,845
3,574
1,066
2,574
6,212
85,003

6,974
(638)
(2,034)
121
4,217
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5. ACCOMMODATION IN MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

2019 2018
Units/Bed Units/Bed
spaces spaces

Group and Association

Supported Housing
2,111
55

Supported housing
Care homes

Short stay housing
Total number of Supported Housing managed units

2,067
55
131

89
2,255

2,253

709

606

152
3,116

172
3,031

Other Units

Real Lettings
Owned but managed by another organisation

6. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME
Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Interest on bank deposits

20

83

Association
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
20

83

7. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Association

2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Interest arising on;

Unwinding of discount factor on pension deficit provision

260

4
109

Other interest

2
290

113

Loans

28

109

260
2
262

109

8. OPERATING SURPLUS
Note

Operating surplus is stated after charging/(crediting):
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets
Reversal of impairment on housing properties
Operating lease rentals

12a
12b
12c
12b
24

Association

Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000

2019 2018
£'000 £'000

2
3,183
126

3,201
118

2
3,183
126

2,214

2,573

(684)

(684)
2,573

3,201
118
2,214

Fees payable to RSM UK Audit LLP and its associates in respect of both audit and non- audit services are as follows;
Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
71

Audit services - statutory audit of the group

61

Association
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
64

53

Other services:-

Taxation compliance services

5

48

3
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9. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY
2019
£'000

Group and Association

2018
£'000

Disposal proceeds

162

363

Carrying value of Fixed assets

(76)

(273)

86

90

Gain on disposal

During the year the Association disposed of land at Brecknock Road. The Property disposal yielded a surplus of £128,000.
There were also disposals of partially depreciated assets (mainly kitchens and bathrooms), resulting in a loss of £42,000.
The net surplus will be recycled into new property development activities furthering the Associations aims and objectives.
10. EMPLOYEES

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the Association and Group during the year
was:

Group and Group and
Association Association

2019 2018
No. No.

1,080
205
211

Full time

Part time (full time equivalent 137) (2018:157)
Locums (full time equivalent 120) (2018:151)

Staff costs for the above persons:

1,496

1,039
217
219
1,475

Group and

Group and

Association Association

2019
£•000
47,351
4,012
1,251

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs and current service cost (note 25)

52,614

The full time equivalent number of staff who received remuneration (excluding trustees,
including executive directors): i
£60,001 -£70,000
£70,001 .£80,000
£80,001 .£90,000
£90,001 -£100,000
£100,001-£120,000
£120,001-£140,000
£140,001-£150,000

2019

2018

£'000
7
6
2

£•000
7
5
2
2
2

3
2
1

49

2018
£'000
44,286
3,768
950
49,004

1
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10. EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Emoluments for all Executive Directors employed by the Association for the year ended 31 March 2019, including
pension contributions, are detailed below:
Actual

Full time gross salary

Position

annual and

Name salary emoluments
Chief Executive Howard Sinclair 148,920 156,366

Development Director Rebecca Sycamore 99,960 105,958
Finance Director Sonia Smith 122,400 126,883
Services Director David Fisher 1 05,596 111,927

People and Governance Director Helen Giles 98,899 105,269
Strategy Director Dominic Williamson 81,600 83,232
657,375
689,635
The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the Association's Scottish Widows defined contribution pension scheme
and no enhancement or special terms apply. The Association does not make any further contributions to an individual
pension arrangement for the Chief Executive.
2019

2018

£

£
610,068
25,665
30,603
689,635 635,733

659,032

Remuneration and fees

Association contributions to money purchase pension schemes

None of the Trustees received any emoluments in the year. Trustees claimed £488 in expenses during the year (2018:
£512). Remuneration paid to key management personnel includes amounts paid to Executive Directors (inclusive of

National Insurance) and Trustees. During the period this amounted to £773,348 (2018: £712,818).
11. TAXATION
Factors affecting the tax charge for the year.
The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (19%). The differences are
explained below:
Group Association
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Surplus on ordinary activities before tax

3,323

Surplus on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018: 19%)

4,111

7,046

4,281

631 781 1,339 813

Effects of:

(631) (781) (1,339) (813)

Exempt charitable activities
Tax expense

Any profits are donated by gift aid by the subsidiaries. No UK corporation tax has arisen in the period to 31 March 2019

(31 March 2018: £nil). As any profits are donated by gift aid no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax losses carried forward.
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12A. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Group and

Internal and external costs developing computer software for own use

Association

£'000
Cost
31 March 2018
Additions

203

31 March 2019

203

Depreciation and impairment
31 March 2018
Depreciation charged in year
31 March 2019

2
2

Carrying amount
201

31 March 2019
31 March 2018

12B. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - HOUSING PROPERTIES
Social housing properties held for letting
Properties
Completed under
properties construction Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

Group and Association

Cost
105,466

1,860

107,326

1,748

1,748

Works to existing properties

1,074

636

1,710

Schemes completed
Disposals
At 31 March 2018
Properties acquired
Works to existing properties
Schemes completed
Disposals
Reclassification to land and properties held for sale
At 31 March 2019

3,608
(720)

(3,608)

109,428
325
903
618

636

Ati April 2017
Properties acquired

(720)

1,950

(618)

(327)

(327)

(593)
110,354

110,064
325
2,853

(593)
1,968

112,322

Depreciation and impairments
25,896
3,201

Ati April 2017
Depreciation charged in year
Released on disposal
At 31 March 2018
Depreciation charged in year
Released on disposal
Reversal of impairment
Reclassification to land and properties held for sale
At 31 March 2019

25,896
3,201

(448)

(448)

28,649
3,183

28,649

(251)
(684)
(183)

(251)
(684)
(183)

30,714

30,714

3,183

Net Book Value

79,640
80,779

At 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018
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1,968
636

81,608
81,415
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12B. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - HOUSING PROPERTIES (continued)
At each reporting date an assessment must be made of whether any indicators of impairment exist. A review has been
undertaken and no impairment indicators have been identified as a result of the assessment. Properties that were
previously impaired have had their carrying value reinstated to depreciated replacement cost. Cumulative impairments on
housing properties amounted to £nil at 31 March 2019 (2018: £684,000). Development and works to existing properties
include capitalised administration costs of£116,106 (2018: £86,818). Properties acquired in the year ended 31 March 2018
included £1,461,000 reflecting the grossing up of historical grant transferred for Middle Street to St Mungo's.
EXPENDITURE ON WORKS TO EXISTING PROPERTIES
2019

Group and Association

Total capitalised costs in respect of existing properties and replacement components
Amounts charged to income and expenditure

£'000

2018
£'000

2,853

1,710

2,853

1,710

2019
£'000
70,936
7,741

2018
£'000
70,915
7,476
3,024
81,415

HOUSING PROPERTIES BY TENURE
Group and Association
Freehold land and buildings
Long leasehold land and buildings
Short leasehold land and buildings

2,931
81,608

12C. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - OTHER
Group and Association

Computers
Equipment

Furniture
and

Equipment
£'000
£'000

Cost
1 April 2017
Additions

31 March 2018

Depreciation and impairment
1 April 2017
Depreciation charged in year
31 March 2018
Depreciation charged in year
Released on disposal
31 March 2019
Carrying amount
31 March 2019
31 March 2018

Motor
vehicles

Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

831

53

831

53

1,148
33
1,181
86

44
19
63

220
14
234
86

(16)

(16)

63

320

831

37

1,251

21

80
57
137
57

53

261

38
16

107
44
151
53

53

379
126

_(16L

(16)

54

204

194

37

489

9
25

116

637

83

694

Additions

Disposals
31 March 2019

Leasehold
improvements

17

52

118

762
802
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13. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Association
Investment in subsidiaries

2019
£'000

2018
£'000

352

237
50
65

Cost
At start of period
Investment In Street Impact London Limited

Investment In Street Impact Brighton Limited

(237)

Liquidation of Street Impact Limited
At end of period
Impairment
At start of period

115

352

(44)

(44)

Release of provision for impairment in Investment in Street Impact Limited

44

(44)

At end of period
Carrying amount
31 March
Association
Investment in associate

115

308

2019
£'000

2018
£'000

Cost
At start of period
Investment in Social Impact Bristol Limited
At end of period

16

Group
Share of associate - Social Impact Bristol Limited

Share of profits/(loss) in associate
Share of:
Current Assets

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

16

16
16

2019
£'000

£'000

27

(27)

2018

137

29

(46)

(40)

(75)
16

(11)

The St Mungo Community Housing Association subsidiary undertakings are:
Name of undertaking
Broadway
hlomelessness and
Support

Class of Country of Proportion of nominal
shareholding incorporation value held directly

Nature of Business

Ordinary

England

100%

Dormant

Broadway Real
Enterprises Limited

Ordinary

England

100%

Provision of HR consultancy and
database development

Street Impact London

Ordinary

England

100%

Housing and supporting rough
sleepers.

Street Impact Brighton Ordinary England
Limited

100%

Housing and supporting rough
sleepers.

Limited

Additionally St Mungo Community Housing Association owns 33% of Social Impact Bristol Limited.
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14. LAND AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Group and Association
Land and properties
held for sale

£'000

Ati April 2018
410
410

Reclassification from fixed assets

At 31 March 2019
15. DEBTORS

Amounts falling due within one year:
Rent and services receivable
Less: provision for bad and doubtful debts

Trade debtors

Group
2019
2018

Association
2019 2018

£'000
3,718

£'000
3,255

£'000
3,718

£'000

(1,443)

(1,066)

(1,443)

(1,066)

2,275

2,189

2,275

2,189

7,318

4,622

4,571
272

93

27
3,297
10,135

7,137
239
93

4,882
14,626

3,222

Amounts owed from subsidiary undertakings
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

5,064
14,750

3,255

27
10,281

16. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade creditors

Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
2,648 2,378
1,544 1,574
1,552 858

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Other taxation and social security costs

1,828

Rent and service charges received in advance
Deferred capital grants (note 1 8)

Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

1,243
258

319
11,284

11,175

19,175

17,486

Association

2019
£'000
2,648
1,544
1,552
99
1,810
319
11,128
19,100

2018
£'000
2,378
1,574
858
3,871
1,220
225
11,041
21,167

In 2018 amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings for the association included £3.7 million due to Broadway Homelessness
Support. In March 2019 the Broadway Homelessness Support Board granted £3.6 million to the Association (parent
company).

17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Group
2019
2018
£'000
£'000
247
405
73,774
70,833
74,179
71,080

Long-term loan
Deferred capital grants (note 18)

Association

2019 2018
£•000 £'000
73,774
73,774

70,833
70,833

In 2019 the loan movement reflects the £155,000 drawn down to provide working capital for Street Impact Brighton Limited.
The loan is repayable on 31 January 2021, the interest rate is 6.5% per annum.
In 2018 the loan amount reflects the £250,000 drawn down, net of the arrangement fee, to provide working capital for
Street Impact London Limited. The loan is repayable on 30 September 2021, the interest rate is 6.5% per annum.
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18. DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANT
Association and Group

2019
£•000

72,407

2018
£'000

As at 1 April
Grant received in the year
Capital grant released

4,434

72,520
1,461

(1,523)

(1,574)

As at 31 March

75,318

72,407

In full the Association has received Social Housing Grants of £100,152,000 from Government Bodies (2018: £95,718,000).
The Grant received in 2018 of £1,461,000 is the historical grant transferred to St Mungo with lease for Middle Street.
19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000

Association

2019 2018

£-000 £'000

Financial assets:
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost

12,372

8,634

12,426

8,507

Financial liabilities:
Measured at amortised cost

10,883

10,911

10,826

14,342

Total Dilapidations
£'000
£'000
1,046
9,012

Total
£'000
10,058

20. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES
Group and Association

SHPS
Pension
£'000

8,982

1 April 2017
Utilised in the year
Additional provision in year
Unwinding of discount factor (interest expense)
Deficit contribution paid
Re-measurement - impact of any change in
assumptions
31 March 2018
Transferred to defined benefit pension liability (note

(1,357)

25)

(7,634)

GP
Pension

£'000
30

assumptions
31 March 2019

(6)

109

(3)

(1,360)

(1,360)

27

7,661

(100)

(100)

(100)

Utilised in the year
Additional provision in year
Deficit contribution paid
Re-measurement - impact of any change in

(6)
348

348
109

109

7,634

Pension

1,388

9,049

(15)

(7,634)
(15)

211

211

(7,634)

(3)

(3)

1
25

1
25

(3)
1
1,584

1,609

Pension: GP provision represents the net present value of the commitment to the multi-employer pension scheme in
respect of past deficits. The SHPS pension scheme is now accounted for as a defined benefit scheme.
Dilapidation: This represents the anticipated cost of making good properties at the end of their lease terms.
21. MEMBERS AND RESERVES
The Association is limited by guarantee and consequently has no share capital. Each of the Association's members
agrees to contribute £1 in the event of the Association winding up.
2019
No.

2018

10
2

12
2

(1)

(4)

11

10

No.

Number of members

1 April
Joined during the year
Left during year
31 March
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21. MEMBERS AND RESERVES (continued)
Balance at

1 April

RESTRICTED RESERVES

2018
39

Recovery College
Street Legal
HARP
HomelessWise

67
52

Putting Down Roots- Young People
Westminster Contract & Assessment
Lifeworks

69
79

West London Refugee-Horn of Africa
Putting Down Roots
NSNO
Social Enterprise - P+D
The Lodge
Development- Mare St
Social Enterprise-Bricks & Mortar

29
111
120
80

SELHP Project
Revive
Palliative Care Service
Research

7

Bristol Shelter

Balance at

Income Expenditure

789
387
216
197
159

133
125
118
113
111
105
96
96
93
80
79
70
60
52

43
40

Complex Needs S&W
Shelter
Volunteering Services
Grove Crescent

5
2

Oxford Outreach
Mulberry House (Support)
CRC (Sodexo)
Digital inclusion
Putting Down Roots - Jo Malone Bristol
Housing First Reading
Social Enterprise - Studio

40
36
36
35
30

28
17
23

Pan-London SWEP
Oxford Mental Health

160

West Oxford Young People
Couples Innovation Project 18-19

Waltham Forest - Single Homeless Advice and Support
Chichester Road

Reading Outreach
Merton Project

Putting Down Roots - Jo Malone London
Roll On Monday
Work & Learning Services
Auckland Hill
Other
Total

25
24
20
20
17
11
10
10
5
4

5
31
108
32
71
15
45
142

121

1,309

3,634

(210)
(87)
(216)
(109)
(161)
(185)
(125)
(121)
(165)
(111)
(60)
(96)
(207)
(60)
(44)
(79)
(54)
(59)
(18)
(40)
(40)
(6)
(37)

31 March
2019
618
300
88
65

66
27
74

153

116
16
60
25

36
35

30

(28)
(29)
(29)
(20)

13
18
20
17
171
10
10
10
35

(108)
(60)

32
11
15

(45)
(187)
(2,796)

76
2,147

Restricted reserves

The reserves represent the value of donations and grants which are expendable in furtherance of some particular aspect
of the objects of the Association. Further detail around funds receivable through the National Lottery Community Fund are
included in note 28.
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21. MEMBERS AND RESERVES (continued)
Designated reserves
The reserves represent the value of unused exceptional fundraised income and legacies that have been set aside to
support growth in services and fund transformation projects.
22. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT AFTER TAX TO NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Group
2019
£'000

2018
£'000

3,323

4,111

(86)
(27)
(20)

(90)

Surplus for the year
Reconciliations to operating surplus

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets
(Profit/) loss from Associate
Interest receivable

27

(83)

290
3,480

4,078

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme payment toward deficit
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Amortisation of capital grant
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Reversal of impairment of tangible fixed assets
lncrease/(decrease) in provisions
Defined Benefit Pension Scheme actuarial gain/(loss)
Defined Benefit Pension costs recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

(1,339)

(1,360)

(1,523)

(1,574)

2
3,309

3,319

(lncrease)/decrease in trade and other debtors

Interest payable
Operating Surplus

Increase in trade and other creditors

Cash generated from operations
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group
Cash and cash equivalents represent:Cash at bank
Short-term deposits

113

(684)
196
1
39

(100)

342

3,481

4,705

(4,612)
1,719
588

673
538
5,916

2019
£'000

£'000

2018

1,509
(191)
25,050
21,488
24,859 22,997

Neither the association or the group have overdraft facilities.
Negative cash at bank figure represents amounts placed on short term deposit awaiting clearance of payments within
BAGS system.
23. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OTHER CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
Group and Association

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in the financial statements

Expenditure authorised by the Board, but not contracted
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2018

£'000

£'000

3,126
11,309
14,435

467
6,207
6,674
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24. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES
Group and Association

2019
£'000

2018
£'000

The total future minimum lease payments are payable:
2,765
7,698
3,634
14,097

Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years

2,086
7,199
4,673
13,958

25. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group participates in four defined contribution pension schemes for all qualifying employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds. The contributions payable by
the Group are charged to expenditure, and contributions payable to the fund at the year end are included in creditors as
follows:

Contributions payable
charged to Statement
of Comprehensive

Administrator

Contributions payable
to the fund included in
creditors

Income

2019 2018

£'000 £'000
134
1,091
23
3

Scottish Widows
Pensions Trust

NEST
AEGON
Other

1,251

153
761
25
4
7
950

2019
£'000

2018
£'000

(24)
(296)

(117)

(5)
(325)

(45)
(162)

SOCIAL HOUSING PENSION SCHEME

The Group participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the scheme), a multi-employer scheme which provides
benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.
The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December
2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the
Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.
The last triennial valuation of the scheme for funding purposes was carried out as at 30 September 2017. This valuation
revealed a deficit of £1 ,522m. A Recovery Plan has been put in place with the aim of removing this deficit by 30 September
2026.

The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore the Group is potentially liable for other
participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following
withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an
annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.
For financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it has not been possible for the company to obtain sufficient
information to enable it to account for the Scheme as defined benefit scheme, therefore the company has accounted for
the scheme as a defined contribution scheme.

For financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019, it is possible to obtain sufficient information to enable the company
to account for the Scheme as a defined benefit scheme. In adopting the change in accounting, St Mungo's has recognised
an initial loss of £3,056,000.

For accounting purposes, two actuarial valuations for the scheme were carried out with effective dates of 31 March 2018
and 30 September 2018. The liability figures from each valuation are rolled forward to the relevant accounting dates, if
applicable, and are used in conjunction with the company's fair share of the Scheme's total assets to calculate the
company's net deficit or surplus at the accounting period start and end dates.
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT CONTINUED
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION LIABILITY
2019
£'000

2018
£•000

1 April
7,634
299
4,771

Transferred from provisions
Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income
Defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Deficit contribution paid

(1,336)

31 March

11,368

PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION, FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND DEFINED BENEFIT
LIABILITY
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Fair value of plan assets 36,220 34,786
Present value of defined benefit obligation (47,588) (45,476)
(11,368) (10,690)
Deficit in plan
Unrecognised surplus
(11,368) (10,690)
Defined benefit liability to be recognised
Deferred Tax

(11,368) (10,690)

Net defined benefit liability to be recognised

RECONCILIATION OF THE IMPACT OF THE ASSET CEILING
2019
£'000
Impact of asset ceiling at start of period
Effect of the asset ceiling included in net interest cost
Actuarial losses (gains) on asset ceiling
Impact of asset ceiling at end of period

RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES OF THE DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
2019
£'000
45,476

Defined benefit obligation at start of period
Current service cost
Expenses
Interest expense
Contributions by plan participants
Actuarial gains due to scheme experience

39
1,162

(164)

131
Actuarial losses due to changes in demographic assumptions
2,140
Actuarial losses due to changes in financial assumptions
(1,196)
Benefits paid and expenses
Liabilities acquired in a business combination
Liabilities extinguished on settlements
Losses (gains) on curtailments
Losses (gains) due to benefit changes
Exchange rate changes _-_
Defined benefit obligation at end of period 47,588
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT CONTINUED
RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING BALANCES OF THE FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS

Fair value of plan assets at start of period
Interest income
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts added as interest income) gain
Contributions by the employer
Contributions by plan participants
Benefits paid and expenses
Assets acquired in a business combination
Assets distributed on settlements
Exchange rate changes

2019
£'000
34,786
902

392
1,336

(1,196)

36,220

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

The actual return on plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period ended 31 March 2019 was
£1,294,000.

DEFINED BENEFIT COSTS RECOGNISED IN STATEMENT OF COIV1PREHENSIVE INCOME (SOCI)
2019
£'000
Current service cost

39
260

Expenses
Net interest expense
Losses/(gains) on business contributions
Losses/(gains) on settlements
Losses/(gains) on curtailments

Losses/(gains) due to benefit changes
Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive income (SoCI)

299

DEFINED BENEFIT COSTS RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest cost) - gain
Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities - gain
Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the present value of the

2019
£'000
392
164

(131)

defined benefit obligation - loss
Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the present value of the defined
benefit obligation - loss
Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some of the surplus not being
recognisable) - loss

(2,140)

(1,715)

Effects of changes in the amount of surplus that is not recoverable (excluding amounts
included in net interest cost)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income - loss
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT CONTINUED
ASSETS
2019
£'000
3,134
2,089
1,690
663

Absolute return

Alternative risk premia
Corporate Bond Fund
Credit Relative Value
Distressed Opportunities
Emerging Markets Debt
Fund of Hedge Funds

2018
£'000
4,249
1,319
1.429

658

336

1,403

Global Equity

1,250
163
6,094

1,146
6,871

Infrastructure

1,899

892

1,039
13,246
533
70
486
815
1,094
1,297
36,220

914
12,672

Insurance-Linked Securities

Liability Driven Investment
Long Lease Property
Net Current Assets
Private Debt

Property
Risk Sharing
Secured Income
Total assets

33
310
1,601
322

1,289
34,786

None of the fair values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the employer's own financial
instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the employer.
KEY ASSUMPTIONS
2019
% per

2018
% per

annum

annum

Discount Rate

2.40

2.59

Inflation (RPI)
Inflation (CPI)

3.20

3.16

2.20

2.16

Salary Growth

3.20

3.16

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2019 imply the following life

75% of

75% of

maximum
allowance

maximum
allowance

Life
expectancy
at age 65

(Years)

expectancies:

21.8
23.5
23.2
24.7

Male retiring in 2019
Female retiring in 2019
Male retiring in 2039
Female retiring in 2039
PENSION TRUST - GROWTH PLAN

The Group participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to some 950 non-associated
participating employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK. It is not possible for the Group to obtain
sufficient information to enable it to account for the scheme as a defined benefit scheme. Therefore it accounts for the
scheme as a defined contribution scheme.

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December
2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the
Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT CONTINUED

The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore the Group is potentially liable for other
participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following

withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an
annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.
A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out at 30 September 2017. This valuation showed assets of £794.9m,
liabilities of £926.4m and a deficit of £131.5m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the Trustee has asked the participating

employers to pay additional contributions to the scheme as follows:
Deficit contributions:
From 1 April 2019 to 31 January 2025: £1 1.243m per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1 st April).
Unless a concession has been agreed with the Trustee the term to 31 January 2015 applies.
Note that the scheme's previous valuation was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. This valuation

showed assets of£793.4m, liabilities of £969.9m and a deficit of £176.5m. To eliminate this funding shortfall, the Trustee
has asked the participating employers to pay additional contributions to the scheme as follows:
Deficit contributions

From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2025: £12.945m per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1st April).
From 1 April 2016 to 30 September 2028: £54,560 per annum (payable monthly and increasing by 3% each on 1st April).
The recovery plan contributions are allocated to each participating employer in line with their estimated share of the Series
1 and Series 2 scheme liabilities.

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the Group has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement the Group recognises a
liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions payable
under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in these
disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost.

Present value of provision

RECONCILIATION OF OPENING AND CLOSING PROVISIONS
Provision at start of period
Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense)
Deficit contribution paid
Re-measurements - impact of any change in assumptions

2019
£'000

2018
£'000

2017
£'000

25

27

30

2019
£'000
27

2018
£'000
30

2017
£'000
32
1

(3)

(3)

(3)
1

1

Re-measurements - amendments to the contribution schedule

Provision at end of period

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE IMPACT

25

27

30

2019

2018
£'000

2017
£•000
1
1

2019
% per

2018
% per

2017
% per

annum

annum

annum

1.39

1.71

1.32

£'000
Interest expense
Re-measurements - impact of any change in assumptions
Re-measurements - amendments to the contribution schedule

Rate of discount
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT CONTINUED

The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future recovery
plan contributions due, would give the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same
recovery plan contributions.
26. OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

The Association has underwritten lease agreements in relation to the Real Lettings Property Fund to pay future Residential
Social Landlord fees on the properties handed over to St Mungo's for management when such properties are unlet. As at
31 March 2019, underwritten lease commitments total £30,557,348 (2018: £22,195,063).
27. LOCAL GOVERNMENT HOUSING ACT 1998
The total grant available from the Association of London Government and London Councils for the year ended 31 March
2019 for the Housing Advice, Resettlement and Prevention Connect (HARP) project was £251,538 (2018: £251,538). The
analysis below summarises what the grants were awarded for and how they have been used:
London Councils - Assertive Offender Resettlement
Grant

Salaries
Beneficiary costs

Running costs

£'000

Spend
£'000

187
14
51
252

178
9
43
230

As at the 31 March 2019 the amount of grant unspent and therefore not received was £21,965 (2018: £34,925). During the
year, London Councils clawed back £34,925 (2018: £17,932 relating to 2016-17) relating to 2017-18.
28. NATIONAL LOTTERY COMMUNITY FUND
In 2018-19fourofour projects were funded by the National Lottery through the National Lottery Community Fund:
National Lottery Community Fund Reaching Communities grant investment towards the Horn of Africa Health and
Wellbeing Project was £118,333 (2018: £113,031) during the year. At the year end the project had a total of £65,833
(2018: £69,006) unspent at the year end.
National Lottery Community Fund Reaching Communities grant investment towards the Real Confidence Project
closed this year. £65,928 of unspent grant income was paid back.
National Lottery Community Fund Our Bright Future grant investment towards Putting Down Roots for Young People
was £158,640 (2018: £133,338) during the year. At the year end the project had a total of £65,507 (2018: £66,652)
unspent.

National Lottery Community Fund Reaching Communities grant investment towards the Recovery College Project
was £147,248 during the year. At the year end the project had a total of £16,066 unspent at year end.
29. LEGISLATIVE PROVISIONS

The Association is incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 and registered with the Regulator of Social Housing and
Charity Commission.
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following transactions are with 100% owned entities which are not regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing:
Broadway Real Enterprises Limited provided HR advice and services to the Association of £52,964 during the year
(2018: £28,641).
The Association recharged salaries of £249,001 to Broadway Real Enterprises Limited in respect of staff

secondments during the year (2018: £198,317).
Broadway Real Enterprises Limited donated £nil to the Association during the year (2018: £75,768).
Broadway Homelessness and Support recovered property lease costs from the Association of£nil (2018: £53,000).
Management costs of £43,083 have been recharged from the Association to Broadway Real Enterprises Ltd based

on attributable overheads at 14% of income (2018: 14% of income, £51,612).
Street Impact London Limited has charged £226,414 (2018: £nil) and accrued £83,166 (2018: £108,000) of delivery
charges per the sub contract to the Association.

Street Impact Brighton Limited has charged £157,383 (2018: £nil) and accrued £52,461 (2018: £18,829) of delivery
charges per the sub contract to the Association.

Broadway Real Enterprises Ltd owed £142,603 to the Association (2018: £208,470 owed by Association to
Broadway Real Enterprises Ltd).
Broadway Homelessness and Support made a grant on the 1 1 March 2019 to the Association for £3,565,683 (201 8:

£nil)
£99,000 was owed by the Association to Broadway Homelessness and Support (2018: £3,664,683).
£nil was owed by the Association to Street Impact Limited (2018: £192,000).
Street Impact London Limited owed £49,536 to the Association (2018: £26,100).

Street Impact Brighton Limited owed £47,176 to the Association (2018: £25,500).
The following transactions are with a 33% owned entity which is not regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing:

Social Impact Bristol Limited has charged £87,866 (2018: £nil) and accrued £54,780 (2018: £47,717) of delivery
charges per the sub contract to the Association.
Social Impact Bristol Limited owed £50,913 to the Association (2018: £42,300).

Social Impact Bristol Limited gifted £3,196 to the Association during the year (2018: £nil).
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